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Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

In certain cases, the information in this report is based on estimates and forecasts made by the Tsubaki Group. The accuracy of numerical data, including statistics, is not guaranteed. 
As a general rule, figures less than a unit have been rounded.
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99 Hdlne or 89 HdlneTsubaki Group at a Glance

Differentiated 
Technologies

+
Differentiated 
Manufacturing

+
Differentiated 

Sales

Best Value

Customers
+

Society
+

Shareholders

As a production professional, the Tsubaki Group focuses on: (1) developing products 

distinguished for their quality and technology, (2) applying original new production tech-

nologies to create distinctive product lines, and (3) using this knowledge to create global 

marketing and management systems that provide timely products and services to custom-

ers worldwide. As a result, the Group is poised to achieve consistent growth over the 

breadth of its business domain that will connect to the provision of “best value” to custom-

ers, society, shareholders, and other stakeholders.

All employees in the Group show considerable pride and conviction in their work and 

actively strive to achieve the aims of the Group.

WHAT IS OUR FOUNDATION?
OUR MISSION
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WHAT DO WE DO?
BUSINESS DOMAIN

The Tsubaki Group is an integrated manufacturer of power trans-

mission products and materials handling systems. The Group 

produces manufacturing equipment and automotive and other 

conveyor systems under the Innovation in Motion concept. In 

addition, we develop products that offer the competitive ad-

vantages of durability, energy conservation, and other unique 

features. With five manufacturing centers worldwide, the Group 

can quickly manufacture goods and get them to its customers 

in a timely fashion using its just-in-time (JIT) supply system. The 

product lineup comprises chains for various industries, precision 

products, and automotive parts and other machine parts in the 

field of Motion & Control, which is made up of the Power Transmis-

sion Products and the Materials Handling Systems segments. The 

latter of which combines all of these components into systems.

WHERE IS OUR POSITION?
INDUSTRY POSITION

Global Leadership for Two Core Products

In industrial-use steel chains, the Group enjoys a dominant market 

position far ahead of its second-ranking competitors in Japan and 

abroad. In timing chain drive systems—a key product in Automotive 

Parts operations—the Group and a leading overseas company 

largely control global markets.

High Market Share in Other Areas

Products that have the leading position in the domestic market 

include cam clutches and power cylinders in the Power Transmis-

sion Products segment, and automotive body paint shop conveyor 

systems and roll paper feeding systems for newspapers in the 

Materials Handling Systems segment. The Group derives strength 

from its rich product lineup in the Power Transmission Products seg-

ment and from its creative product lineup using solutions’-based 

technologies in the Materials Handling Systems segment.

SALES BY OPERATING SEGMENT IN FISCAL 2008

INDUSTRY STANDING FOR MAINSTAY PRODUCTS

Industrial-Use 
Steel Chains

Timing Chain 
Drive Systems

Domestic Share World Share

Cam Clutches

Power Cylinders

Automotive Body Paint Shop 
Conveyor Systems

Roll Paper Feeding Systems
for Newspapers

67% 24%

75% 37%

80%

50%

35%

80%

Tsubaki Group at a Glance

Source: Tsubakimoto Chain
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HOW HAVE WE CHANGED?
REVIEW OF THE MAP AHEAD FOR GROWTH 

The Group took important steps to completely redefine its busi-

ness structure in fiscal 2002. Until that time, operations were 

susceptible to economic trends in Japan, particularly trends in 

capital investment.

 However, the Group has enhanced its underlying strengths by 

(1) thoroughly bolstering its financial standing, (2) changing its 

organizational structure to foster greater efficiency, and (3) for-

mulating growth strategies allowing it to take maximum advantage 

of the structural changes affecting the external business environ-

ment to achieve steady global development.

 The result is a tenacious corporate structure less susceptible 

to volatility in the domestic economy and positioned for consis-

tently strong growth ahead.

Changes in Tsubaki Group’s Growth Track

FROM DEPENDENCE ON DOMESTIC ECONOMY  
TO STRONG, INDEPENDENT GROWTH

Structural Shift in Automotive Engine Timing Drive Systems 

JAPANESE TREND TO ADOPT CHAINS  
SPREADING WORLDWIDE 

WHERE ARE WE HEADING?
GROWTH DRIVERS

With customers becoming more focused on cost performance 

in their capital investment and buying practices, the Tsubaki 

Group has enhanced its advantages by reducing energy consump-

tion, taking steps to promote environmental preservation, and 

offering products with improved durability and other distinctive 

features. Automotive parts are a primary example. Automotive 

engines increasingly feature higher performance but lower energy 

consumption. The Group took the initiative to reduce the weight 

of its timing chains, developing products that not only have more 

durable timing belts than those used in previous camshaft 

drives but that are also quieter. As a result, the Group has be-

come the global market leader in the field and attained growth. 

Moreover, we have expanded our customer base worldwide by (1) 

improving productivity at every level in our plants, and (2) building 

five production bases and a strategic global marketing network 

to allow us to provide JIT supply and other enhanced services.

Sources:  Capital investment figures from Japan’s Ministry of Finance; automobile shipment figures 
from Japan Automobile Manufacturers Association, Inc.

Source: Tsubakimoto Chain
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WHERE HAVE WE GROWN?
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A company can maximize its corporate value through efforts to 

optimize the balance between three key areas—growth potential, 

profitability, and financial soundness. As can be seen from the 

graphs to the right, the Tsubaki Group is achieving sustained im-

provements in each of these three areas. It is possible that future 

economic conditions may temporarily halt these positive trends. 

However, by continuously strengthening our competitiveness, we 

believe that we can create a financial structure capable of achiev-

ing sustainable growth.

Tsubaki Group at a Glance

Growth Potential, Based on the Top Line (Net Sales)

Profitability, Based on Ratios for Net Sales and Shareholders’ Equity

Financial Soundness, Based on Financial Foundations
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1. EBITDA = Operating income + Depreciation and amortization
2. Net financial expenses = Interest and dividend income – Interest expense
3. Net interest-bearing debt = Interest-bearing debt – Cash and cash equivalents
4. Free cash flow = Net cash provided by operating activities + Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
5. ROE = Net income ÷ Average shareholders’ equity
6. D/E ratio (net) = Net interest-bearing debt ÷ Shareholders’ equity
7. Includes a commemorative 90th anniversary dividend of ¥2.00 

FY2008 FY2007 FY2006 FY2005 FY2004

Operating Performance (Millions of yen)

Net sales ¥167,203 ¥155,747 ¥147,761 ¥129,563 ¥119,141

Operating income 19,805 16,008 13,830 10,448 7,951

EBITDA*1 27,107 21,957 19,339 15,952 14,035

Ordinary income 18,051 14,545 12,594 8,888 6,215 

Net income 10,371 8,541 6,607 4,449 3,385

Depreciation and amortization 7,302 5,948 5,509 5,504 6,083 

Net financial expenses*2 (445) (554) (642) (1,002)  (1,181)  

Balance Sheets (Millions of yen)

Total assets ¥202,317 ¥212,740 ¥198,458 ¥179,263 ¥175,432 

Shareholders’ equity 81,605 81,034 77,098 71,634 66,873

Interest-bearing debt 39,315 42,313 38,967 43,380 50,317 

Net interest-bearing debt*3 21,570 27,695 27,982 31,818 36,637 

Cash Flows (Millions of yen)

Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 20,873 ¥10,107 ¥10,681 ¥ 9,673 ¥  7,995

Net cash (used in) provided  

 by investing activities (11,481) (5,879) (5,595) (2,465) 9,068

Net cash used in financing activities (5,582) (647) (5,596) (9,412) (15,538)

Free cash flow*4 9,392 4,228 5,086 7,208 17,063

   Major Indicators

Ordinary income margin 10.8% 9.3% 8.5% 6.9% 5.2% 

ROE*5 12.8% 10.8% 8.9% 6.4% 5.3% 

D/E ratio (net)*6 0.26 0.34 0.36 0.44 0.55 

Per Share Data (Yen)

Net income ¥ 55.70 ¥  45.55 ¥  34.78 ¥ 22.77 ¥  17.40

Net assets 438.56 432.20 410.66 380.91 354.14

Cash dividends 8.00  7.00 9.00*7 7.00 6.00
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WHERE ARE WE HEADING?
FINANCIAL TARGETS AND BASIC STRATEGIES

Factors including the surging prices of crude oil and raw materials 

and the depreciation of the U.S. dollar have made the Tsubaki 

Group’s economic environment more challenging than ever be-

fore. In these operating conditions, we will further solidify our 

competitive advantages in product development, production, and 

marketing through strategies to accelerate the pace of necessary 

investments and financial reforms. In the short term, these efforts 

may actually cause our growth to slow down. However, we are 

convinced these strategies are essential if we are to realize rapid 

growth in the future. This belief is encapsulated in our key mes-

sage, “STEPPING UP MOVING AHEAD.” 

The message’s meaning is that, while always having an eye on 

the future, achieve a steady and strategic development of pro-

duction capabilities.

Tsubaki Group at a Glance

THREE-YEAR STEP10 MEDIUM-TERM MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Investment Targets
Amid the challenging operating conditions, carry out bold and aggressive 
upfront investments to strengthen our resistance to economic fluctuations 
and our capacity to maintain stable supplies

Sales and Profit Targets
Absorb the burden of upfront investments and currency fluctuations; achieve 
yearly ordinary income growth of 4.4%

Net Sales in Power Transmission Products Segment
Chain Operations
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We will leverage our manufacturing prowess to attain constant growth, and 
continue to further strengthen our competitive position through greater product 
quality, technology, and production capacity.

In fiscal 2008, the economy deteriorated particularly in the second half of the year, but 

the Tsubaki Group registered sales and profit growth for the sixth straight term, while 

also recording historically high profits for the third consecutive fiscal year.

 Both sales and profit increased substantially on the back of strategies that maintained 

a balance between measures to improve our underlying business structure and initiatives 

for strengthening our core operations. We bolstered our financial standing and made our 

organizational structure more effective. We put priority on developing globally—based on 

the quality of our products and superior technologies—to help us bolster production 

capacity and improve productivity.

 External operating conditions eroded markedly as the currency markets fluctuated 

rapidly and crude oil and raw material prices surged. However, we aim to hone our 

product capabilities, strengthen production potential, and build a stable supply network. 

Furthermore, we will not shirk from making the necessary investments to ensure that 

these changes reap rewards.

 These initiatives will probably have a short-term negative effect on financial perfor-

mance. Nevertheless, we are confident that the Group can enhance its growth potential 

from fiscal 2012 onward as it rekindles its potential for expansion and takes the steps to 

strengthen its resistance to the volatility in the current external business environment.

 We thank our shareholders, investors, and associates for their continuing support.

Management’s Views

Takashi Fukunaga
Chairman, President 
and Representative 
Director

On August 25, 2008, Tatsuhiko Mimoto, Tsubakimoto 

Chain Co. President and Representative Director, 

passed away. Following his appointment as president 

in June 2005, he had striven for three years to develop 

the Company’s business. We would like to offer our 

heartfelt thanks to all our shareholders and investors 

for their kind support during his tenure. 

 Following a special Board 

of Directors’ meeting held 

on August 28, 2008, the 

Company appointed Chair-

man and Representative 

Director Takashi Fukunaga 

as Chairman, President and 

Representative Director. 
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Growth record and achievements in 

the past 10 years

Let’s examine the Group’s growth 

record and achievements over the 

past decade or so.

The Tsubaki Group was susceptible to the 

domestic economy and capital investment 

and was highly exposed to the economic 

cycles of the 1990s. In the second half of 

the decade, we enacted a number of strat-

egies to reduce our reliance on the 

domestic economy.

 The fruits of these efforts are apparent 

in the numbers. For example, total capital 

investment in Japan in fiscal 2008 was 

largely unchanged from 10 years earlier 

(fiscal 1998) even though the economy has 

been on a recovery course over the past 

several years. In fiscal 2008, unit auto 

production was only 6% higher than 10 

years earlier. However, the Group’s con-

solidated net sales were 1.3x higher, and 

its ordinary income was 3.3x higher.

 The Group’s first strategies for improv-

ing its underlining foundations has been to 

bolster its financial standing. The ratio of 

interest-bearing debt to total assets was 

28.2% 10 years ago and then worsened to 

37.7% in fiscal 2001. However, it has im-

proved consistently since then and fell to 

19.4% at the end of fiscal 2008.

 Secondly, the Group has pushed forward 

with its “Global Best” strategy for an active 

expansion into overseas markets. The over-

seas sales ratio has increased sharply, 

from 29.7% 10 years ago to 37.5% in fiscal 

2008. In particular, industrial-use steel 

chains, which have particular quality ad-

vantages, and mainstay timing chain drive 

systems in Automotive Parts operations 

command leading shares in their markets 

worldwide.

 The Group has strengthened production 

capacity and improved productivity. The 

plant adjacent to the head office in Osaka, 

which was particularly outdated, has been 

replaced with a large plant with cutting-

edge chain operation capabilities in 

Kyotanabe City, Kyoto Prefecture. Although, Kyoto Prefecture. Although. Although 

this investment has resulted in an increase 

in interest-bearing debt, it has dramati-

cally improved productivity. Moreover, we 

have been enhancing our production ca-

pacity overseas, which has been at the 

forefront of efforts to procure products at 

the best possible locations worldwide.

 We believe the steady implementation 

of this balanced strategy, consisting of 

both aggressive and defensive actions, 

has rendered the Group largely immune to 

conditions in the external economy.

Perceptions of external  

business conditions

What is the outlook for fiscal 2009 

and beyond? Do you think external 

business conditions will worsen?

The slowdown in the U.S. economy due to 

the subprime loan problem and other fac-

tors has clearly had some serious 

repercussions for the global economy. In 

addition, the surge in crude oil and raw 

material prices and the rapid depreciation 

of the U.S. dollar have naturally had some 

detrimental effects on our own industry. 

For fiscal 2009, we forecast that consoli-

dated net sales will rise by just over 1% 

and that ordinary income will decrease by 

more than 5%.

 Under these circumstances, the Group 

has enacted STEP10, a new three-year 

medium-term management plan that runs 

Delicate Balance between  

Defensive and Expansionary 

Strategies Strengthening the 

Tsubaki Group’s Ability to  

Withstand Economic Volatility

Management’s Views

The Tsubaki Group’s major strategic achievements in the past 10 years

FY1998 FY2008 Change

Net sales (millions of yen) ¥128,298 ¥167,203 1.3x higher

Ordinary income (millions of yen) 5,511 18,051 3.3x higher 

Ratio of interest-bearing debt to total assets 28.2% 19.4% 8.8% improvement 

Ratio of SG&A costs to sales 21.7% 17.9% 3.8% improvement

Overseas sales ratio 29.7% 37.5% 7.8% increase
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STEP10 Plan—Building the 

Foundations for Ensuring 

Consistent Growth

through fiscal 2011. Fortunately, the Group 

has many competitive products and has 

been steadily offsetting the negative fac-

tors that are presenting challenges by 

raising the prices of core products and in-

creasing productivity. We intend to continue 

increasing sales as we elevate market 

share worldwide. Even assuming apprecia-

tion of the yen on foreign-exchange markets 

to ¥100=U.S.$1 and ¥159= 15, we fore-

cast that average annual growth in ordinary 

income of 4.4% annually is attainable over 

the next three years.

 As will be explained in detail, the Group 

plans to aggressively step up capital in-

vestment, with total expenditures coming 

to about ¥35 billion over the next three 

years. The resulting depreciation will total 

about ¥26 billion for the three years 

through fiscal 2011, representing a fairly 

large cost increase of ¥7.2 billion from the 

three years through fiscal 2008. As noted, 

we are targeting average annual growth in 

ordinary income of 4.4% annually as these 

rising costs are absorbed.

Issues facing the Tsubaki Group 

What do you think are the biggest 

issues now facing the Tsubaki Group?

Looking back at the last 10 years, the 

main issue we face is that even though we 

have effectively strengthened the founda-

tions for ensuring persistent growth, our 

initiatives are still some way from being 

completed. Our projection for a decline in 

ordinary income in fiscal 2009, albeit in 

single digits, is testament to this fact. We 

are still somewhat vulnerable to rapid ap-

preciation of the yen in foreign-exchange 

markets. In addition, the Group must in-

crease production and procurement in 

local markets.

 We have been concentrating domestic 

output at the Saitama plant for production 

in Japan as automotive parts production 

remains at extremely high levels. Although 

it has not yet been a major problem, a 

major fire, earthquake, or other unfore-

seen occurrence could quickly disable our 

stable supply network, which is one of the 

Group’s strengths. This would have seri-

ous consequences.

 In addition, even though globalization 

has been advancing, products with a higher 

market share worldwide are clearly subject 

to the prevailing economic, social, and 

physical conditions of particular geographi-

cal regions. Making ourselves more able to 

absorb the impact of regional fluctuations 

would greatly strengthen our foundations 

for achieving consistent ongoing growth.

Basic strategies

Tell us about your strategies for  

dealing with these issues.

We will continue focusing on the two 

strategic areas where our efforts have 

been concentrated so far. That is, we will 

further enhance the competitiveness  

of our product lines and production  

capacity while further strengthening our 

financial standing.

 Based on the topics previously dis-

cussed, we will accelerate strategic 

initiatives in the following four areas:

1.  Decentralize plant operations and  

increase production capacity in 

Automotive Parts operations

The Group will decentralize some of its 

production at the Saitama plant, which is 

now the only production facility in Automo-

tive Parts operations in Japan, to the 

Kyotanabe plant. This will be done to 

strengthen our ability to withstand natural 

disasters and any other unforeseen cir-

cumstances. Plans call for shifting around 

10% of output to the Kyotanabe plant. 

 We are also considering expanding 

plant operations in Thailand.

2.  Accelerate production and supply  

procurement from the best possible 

locations worldwide

For example, we plan to raise the local 

production and supply procurement ratios 

in Automotive Parts operations to 50% 

and raise the local procurement ratio in 

Power Transmission Units and Compo-

nents operations to 20% in fiscal 2009.

3.  Penetrate new markets and attract 

new customers

In Chain operations, we have established 

sales bases in Brazil and India. Even as the 
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Enhancing Economic  

Value-Creation in the Group  

for Maximizing Shareholder 

Returns during Growth Stages

global economy has been slowing, the 

Group is increasingly tapping into BRICs 

and other emerging markets that still have 

strong growth potential over the medium 

and long term. Moreover, for sectors with 

specific customers, we are focusing on 

capturing business from industries such as 

mining and basic materials and food pro-

duction where active growth is occurring.

4.  Promote technological innovation and 

new product development

The Group is stepping up technological  

innovation for lightweight, silent, and wear 

resistant applications to gain a techno-

logical edge in power-drive chains in 

Automotive Parts operations, which is 

now being targeted as a second key pillar 

of earnings accompanying the timing chain 

drive system business, an area where the 

Group is already a leading global manu-

facturer. In addition, another of our goals 

for Automotive Parts operations is to raise 

the portion of the sales mix accounted for 

by highly profitable new products from its 

current 20% to 30% over the long term.

These four strategies will require upfront 

investment in the near future, which will 

put downward pressure on profits. In other 

words, prioritizing profits for the future as 

external business conditions deteriorate 

now will temporarily exert pressure on 

earnings and limit profit growth over the 

next three years, as already noted. How-

ever, these initiatives will further raise 

earnings levels over the medium and long 

term, and I believe investment here will be 

crucial for ensuring consistently strong 

growth ahead. 

Maximizing returns for shareholders

Tell us your basic views on maximizing 

returns for shareholders. Your dividend 

payout is not necessarily very high, is it?

Dividends per share (excluding commemo-

rative dividends) were increased incre-

mentally from ¥6 in fiscal 2004 to ¥7 in 

fiscal 2005 and ¥8 in fiscal 2008. That 

said, the consolidated dividend payout of 

14.4%, 25.7% unconsolidated, in fiscal 

2008 cannot be considered high.

 This is because the Group aims to raise 

its profit levels and strengthen its poten-

tial for consistent growth, and is now at a 

stage when utilizing funds for capital 

spending and other upfront investment is 

crucial for nurturing earnings growth.

 We will prudently and responsibly weigh 

up all of the options and benefits from  

either maintaining high retained earnings 

or further increasing the dividend payout.

 Given these conditions, for the current 

growth stage the Group intends to main-

tain a high retained earnings ratio and 

promote policies for increasing market 

capitalization over the medium and long 

term in order to increase the share price 

as much as possible.

 Naturally, raising the dividend payout 

will continue to be one of our major priori-

ties, and we ask for the continuing under-

standing and support of shareholders and 

investors as we pursue these policies.

 The Tsubaki Group will maintain its 

steadfast focus on becoming a global 

enterprise that can consistently register 

growth, thanks to the backing of its cus-

tomers, shareholders, business partners, 

community members, and other stakehold-

ers with whom we share a common goal.

August 2008

Takashi Fukunaga

Chairman, President and Representative Director

Management’s Views
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We believe the source of any manufacturer’s competitive edge 

should be its capabilities in technology, development and  

manufacturing, and its production worksite. In this feature,  

we will explain how our differentiation strategy separates us in 

these areas from other companies, differences which are often 

obscured by marketing data on markets, products, background 

conditions, and levels of sales.

Special Feature:
The Source of the Tsubaki Group’s Competitive Edge

Constantly Upgrading the 
Production Worksite 

Makoto Kanehira
Director and Senior Managing Executive Officer
Development and Technology/Kyotanabe Plant
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1. Basic Technological Capabilities

Among the many elements that determine which manufacturers will survive and 

which will fail, we believe that “basic technological capabilities” is the most essential 

factor. Based on this belief, the Tsubaki Group seeks to differentiate itself from 

other companies by maintaining high levels of investment in basic technologies.

Three Main Elements of our Distinguished Basic Technologies

Basic technological capabilities comprise three main elements. Materials technology 

relates to continuously improving products through R&D based on advanced materials 

science in order to create superior products in terms of durability, wear, quietness, and 

environmental preservation. Assembly technology recognizes ideal sectioning and sur-

facing requires not only proper production processes, but also hinges directly on 

manufacturing costs and price competitiveness. Technological assessment is best il-

lustrated by referencing our work with power-drive chains, targeted to become the second 

core product in our Automotive Parts operations. By carefully assessing, through ad-

vanced simultaneous simulations, how chain and sprockets mesh, the tension put on 

chains, and the noise produced, we have created products that have won the confidence 

of our customers.

Focusing on Basic Technology, Better Scope for Investment

While “basic technology” is the lifeblood of any manufacturer, companies often tend to 

only passively invest in the basics as it is hard to measure or see the contribution to 

short-term earnings. However, the Tsubaki Group has continued to invest proactively in 

basic technology even during periods of weak earnings. For example, the 14,000m2 

technical center at the Kyotanabe plant is equipped with the resources to allow cutting-

edge analysis and simulation, and with image-processing equipment to allow ongoing 

analysis, simulation, and high-precision inspection and analysis. In the chain industry, 

the Tsubaki Group continues to expand its global reach and further widen its earnings 

edge over its peers. The resulting gap in investment capacity should strengthen Tsubaki’s 

competitive edge in basic technology. 
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Financial Soundness Continues to Improve

FY

Technical center at the Kyotanabe plant

R&D investment
Tsubaki Group investment in technological development 

The Tsubaki Group’s “analysis & simulation” and  
“image processing” technologies help to maintain  
its competitive strength. 
Simultaneous analysis of chain transmission  
behavior and stress performance



13

2. Manufacturing Engineering Capabilities

No matter how good a product may be, developing efficient, high-quality  

offerings that are economically priced and that win the absolute trust of  

customers is essential for increasing profits. The Tsubaki Group maintains  

a competitive edge here.

Introducing the Cell Manufacturing System

The operating environment for the Tsubaki Group was extremely challenging in 2001 and 

2002 as we transferred our main plant from Tsurumi, Osaka, to Kyotanabe City, Kyoto 

Prefecture. Earnings were hobbled by a decline in overall demand coupled with high 

depreciation charges. Nonetheless, Chain operations could not stop unprofitable product 

lines or turn to outsourcing during this difficult operating phase. Instead, the Group took 

on the challenge of drastically reforming its manufacturing system by introducing the cell 

manufacturing system, which has lowered costs while also improving quality. It has been 

the cornerstone behind the strong growth that we enjoy today. In the system, a single 

worker or a group of employees form a cell and are entrusted with an entire manufactur-

ing process from start to finish, which affords them considerable autonomy for 

completing the task at hand. Compared with lot manufacturing using belt conveyors and 

other equipment in which workers oversee only a certain portion of product assembly, 

cell manufacturing is a motivating force for employees that instills in them a sense of 

responsibility. It has led directly to higher productivity and quality.

Reaping Major Rewards from Cell Manufacturing

Labor productivity has risen more than 20% since the cell manufacturing system was 

introduced, and inventory turnover has also improved sharply. Raising employee aware-

ness about improving productivity and product quality has stimulated the number of 

employee-generated proposals submitted for improving work processes, and has great-

ly reduced the number of product quality complaints. Our Kyotanabe plant has expanded 

the scope of this manufacturing method from assembly processes on the factory floor 

to its office units. Looking ahead, we intend to further broaden its scope to sales and 

customer services, upgrading to a synchronized cell manufacturing system using the 

“just-in-time” ideal of making only what can be sold as fast as it can be sold.
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Measures for cell synchronizing 
production activities 
From worksite reforms to management reforms

FY2005 Assembly-level reforms
  Benefits for assembly operations  

on the introduction of the cell 
manufacturing system

 • Increased productivity 
 • Improvement in process quality

The first stage of cell synchronization 
production activities

FY2006 Plant-level reforms
  Benefits from synchronization of 

parts processing and assembly 
operations

 • Reduction in lead times
 • Reduction in inventory

FY2007 Operational-level reforms
  Benefits from synchronization of 

machinery maintenance 
 • Reduction in lead times
 •  Decrease in total equipment  

shut-down time

The second stage of cell synchronization 
production activities

FY2008  Domestic and international 
management and customer  
level reforms

FY2010  Increased synchronicity with 
customers

 •  Manufacturing according to  
speed products are sold 

 •  Realizing 100% reliability  
for deliveries

 • Cutting inventory by half
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3. Product Development Capabilities

The Tsubaki Group constantly strives to gauge contemporary needs to develop 

products that take full advantage of its competitiveness.

Many Popular Products Created Using Our Impressive  

Product Development Capabilities

The Tsubaki Group’s Autran Vanguard® overhead conveyor, an unmanned system used in 

factories worldwide, is essential machinery for efficient materials handling at production 

plants. It has subsequently been upgraded, enabling it to supply electricity to conveyors 

without directly touching current collectors. The system is gaining widespread use at 

semiconductor plants and other facilities that require especially clean environments. The 

Tsubaki Group’s extensive product development capabilities have also yielded a number 

of other successful products. These include NEP Chain, which raises corrosion resistance 

from 1.4x achieved by the earlier product to 2.3x through the use of special coatings; 

Silent Chain, which is used in camshaft drives for extremely quiet engine operation; and 

the precision machinery products Power Cylinder and Power Lock.

Notable Growth in Tsubaki Group Patents

While we cannot yet divulge the details of our product development plans, as they are 

the source of our strong competitive position, the basic approach entails identifying what 

technologies must be updated or created based on an objective analysis of current core 

technologies and assessment of technologies and products for which a future demand 

is expected to exist. It is this approach to product development that has seen the 

number of patents we have obtained grow significantly over the past several years.

Module Products for Key Future Areas

The Tsubaki Group’s strength lies in its ability to integrate the supply and assembly of 

parts, devices, and modules into entire systems. Our focus going forward, therefore, will 

continue to center on the use of modules within product development, a strategy adopted 

with the Zip Chain Lifter. The Zip Chain Lifter can lift items 3–10 times faster than 

 conventional hydraulic equipment with pinpoint accuracy. In the future, we expect it to 

gain wide use in applications, including auto assembly lines.
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The zip chain makes possible what is impossible 
using conventional lifting equipment

An extensive product lineup from parts  
through systems

System Products 
•  Conveyance 

systems
• Sorting systems

Parts 
• Chains
• Sprockets
• Toothed belts

Devices 
• Reducers
• Power cylinders

Modular Products 
• Autran Vanguard®

•  Roll paper  
feeding AGV

An important area of development in the future: 
Module products  
Highly anticipated new product: Zip Chain Lifter 

Two chains interlock like a zip, creating  

a single, strong pillar-shaped body able to 

directly transmit thrust for lifting and lowering.  

This enables the kind of high-speed, high-

precision operations that are impossible  

with conventional lifting equipment. 
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Note:  Percentage of overall results has been calculated using denominator figures that have not been adjusted for internal transactions among divisions or for items related to headquarters. 
In the calculation of ROA, operating income for the numerator and average total assets (before adjustments) for the denominator have been used.

Breakdown by Region

Percentage of Overall Results

Percentage of Overall Results

Principal Companies
Japan
Tsubakimoto Chain Co./
Tsubaki Emerson Co.
North America
U.S. Tsubaki, Inc.
Europe
Tsubakimoto Europe B.V.
Asia and Oceania
Taiwan Tsubakimoto Co./
Tsubakimoto Automotive 
 (Shanghai) Co., Ltd./
Tsubakimoto Automotive 
 (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Materials Handling Systems SegmentPower Transmission Products Segment

Three-Year Performance

Japan North America  Europe Asia and Oceania 

Business Segments

Segment Overview Tsubaki Group’s Operations, Lineups, and Locations

Three-Year Performance
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Power Transmission Units and Components Operations

Standing and Features
We are growing sales by leveraging our mainstay reducers to aggres-

sively enter target markets, and utilizing our competitive advantages 

in domestic niche markets for electro-mechanical cylinders, locking 

devices, and other products. We aim to be a globally leading company 

of cam clutches. Differentiated by ability to draw on diverse product 

lineups to provide one-stop Motion & Control solutions. 

Main Lineups
Reducers/Variable speed drives

Linear actuators

Locking devices

Shaft couplings

Cam clutches 

Overload protectors

Sprockets

Materials Handling Systems Operations

Standing and Features
Boasts long track record in delivery of automotive body paint shop 

conveyor systems, conveyance systems for newspaper industry, sort-

ing systems, and bulk conveyance systems. While focusing management 

resources on mainstay lineups, markets new products for drug develop-

ment and other emerging fields. Strength lies in ability to customize 

systems and realize technology solutions-based marketing.

Main Lineups
Sorting and conveyance systems

Storage and picking systems

Bulk conveyance systems

Scrap metal conveyance and coolant processing equipment

Chain Operations

Standing and Features
An industry leader, accounting for 67% of the domestic market for 

industrial-use steel chains and 24% of the world market. Also, real-

izes advantages in plastic chains, cableveyors, and other products.  

Differentiated in world market by technological superiority based on 

quality and development of high-value-added products.

Main Lineups
Drive chains

Small pitch conveyor chains

Large pitch conveyor chains

Plastic chains

Cable and hose protection and guidance products

Automotive Parts Operations

Standing and Features
We hold an overwhelmingly dominant share of the domestic market for 

automotive engine timing chains. Tensioners are also leveraging supe-

riority. Differentiated by quality—durability and low-noise—adaptability 

of systems, and five-point global production and supply system.

Main Lineups
Timing chain drive systems (roller chains/silent chains, tensioners, 

levers, guides, sprockets)

Power drive chains

Power Transmission  
Products Segment

Materials Handling 
Systems Segment

Features and Main Lineups in Each Business Segment

Power Transmission  
Products Segment

Power Transmission  
Products Segment
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FY2004 FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008

Statistics Relating to Operating Environment

I. Capital investment-related statistics in Japan*1 (Billions of yen)

Machinery orders*2 ¥11,108 ¥11,829 ¥12,490 ¥  12,741 ¥12,364

Capital investment*3 39,399 42,603 46,958 54,154 51,600

II. Automotive industry-related statistics*4 (Thousands of cars, share figures excluded)

Japan

  Number of cars produced 10,286 10,511 10,799 11,484 11,596

  Number of cars sold*5 5,890 5,821 5,862 5,619 5,320

United States

  Number of cars sold*5 16,639 16,867 16,945 16,505 16,091

  Japan’s automakers 4,715 5,053 5,377 5,660 5,853

  Their shares 28.3% 30.0% 31.7% 34.3% 36.4%

Europe

  Number of cars sold*6 14,181 14,427 14,529 14,662 14,729

  Japan’s automakers 1,803 1,838 1,888 1,963 2,007

  Their shares 12.7% 12.7% 13.0% 13.4% 13.6%

Tsubaki Group Data

I. Net sales by segment and operations (Millions of yen)

Power Transmission Products segment total*7 ¥91,452 ¥99,787 ¥113,656 ¥124,550 ¥135,225

Chain operations*8 36,000 39,300 44,400 48,600 49,800

Automotive Parts operations*8 31,700 34,600 39,600 44,500 53,600

Power Transmission Units and Components operations*8 20,300 22,200 25,000 26,900 27,900

Materials Handling Systems segment total*7 28,549 30,674 35,484 32,318 33,097

II. Operating income by segment*7 (Millions of yen)

Power Transmission Products segment total 8,629 11,263 14,889 17,367 19,429

Materials Handling Systems segment total 1,881 1,800 2,106 1,889 3,950

III. Operating income margin by segment*7

Power Transmission Products segment total 9.4% 11.3% 13.1% 13.9% 14.4%

Materials Handling Systems segment total 6.6% 5.9% 5.9% 5.8% 11.9%

1. All quarterly results are seasonally adjusted. 
2. Source: Cabinet Office; private-sector demand excluding electric power companies and orders for ships
3. Source: Ministry of Finance; all industries excluding software
4. Source: Daiwa Institute of Research Ltd. 

Generally speaking, we faced a challenging operating environment in fiscal 2008. Capital investment in all major industrialized 

nations began to slow down from the second half of the fiscal year. This trend was particularly noticeable in Japan, where the level 

fell below that of the previous year. Furthermore, automobile shipments in each of the major markets of Japan, the U.S., and 

Europe experienced year-on-year negative growth. Despite this tough operating environment, the Tsubaki Group grew consolidated 

net sales 7.4% year on year, substantially improved profitability, and increased its ordinary income margin to 10.8%. 

 In sales, centered on our globally leading products, such as steel chains and timing chain drive systems, we continued to 

develop new markets and customers. As a result, we increased our overseas sales ratio to 37.5%. This represents a rapid 9.3 

percentage point rise over the last seven years, a testimony to our ability to differentiate our products from our competitors in 

terms of both quality and technology.  

 Increased revenues in the Power Transmissions Products segment contributed to improvement in Group profitability, while the 

Materials Handling Systems segment improved its profit margin through initiatives to cut costs in both design and manufacturing.

Business Environment and Tsubaki Group Performance in Figures
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Overseas Sales by Region
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Billions of yen

Overseas Sales by Region

North America Asia and Oceania

Europe Other

FY2007      1st Qtr 2nd Qtr  3rd Qtr  4th Qtr FY2008      1st Qtr 2nd Qtr  3rd Qtr  4th Qtr

¥  3,415 ¥  3,122 ¥  3,113 ¥  3,108 ¥ 3,058 ¥ 3,102 ¥ 3,121 ¥ 3,189

13,250 13,148 13,804 13,789 12,598 13,068 12,827 12,989

2,969 2,738 2,791 2,984 2,986 2,727 2,754 3,129

1,306 1,396 1,272 1,644 1,199 1,286 1,225 1,610

3,924 4,427 4,323 3,831 3,875 4,341 4,088 3,786

1,280 1,492 1,543 1,346 1,393 1,554 1,534 1,373

32.6% 33.7% 35.7% 35.1% 35.9% 35.8% 37.5% 36.3%

3,980 3,979 3,343 3,360 3,963 3,966 3,402 3,397

543 518 472 430 558 522 485 442

13.6% 13.0% 14.1% 12.8% 14.1% 13.2% 14.3% 13.0%

¥30,181 ¥29,716 ¥31,389 ¥33,264 ¥32,399 ¥32,984 ¥35,239 ¥34,603

– – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – –

– – – – – – – –

7,319 10,936 4,048 10,015 4,815 10,276 5,239 12,767

3,583 3,684 4,637 5,463 3,998 4,724 5,288 5,419

(346) 363 343 1,529 383 1,451 441 1,675

11.9% 12.4% 14.8% 16.4% 12.3% 14.3% 15.0% 15.7%

(4.7%) 3.3% 8.5% 15.3% 8.0% 14.1% 8.4% 13.1%

5. Passenger cars and compact trucks
6. Passenger cars
7. Consolidated business segment data before eliminations and corporate
8. Simple aggregates of global base figures for each operating division. The figures have not been subject to audit and are not official financial results. 
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Basic Segment Data

Our Competitive Advantages

1. Quality

The Tsubaki Group’s industrial-use steel chains captured a lead-

ing global market share of around 24% in fiscal 2008, and market 

share has continued increasing steadily. Our products’ over-

whelming competitiveness stems from their distinctive qualities, 

including durability (wear and fatigue resistance), silent opera-

tion, and lightness. For customers, durability is essential for 

productivity and safety, and our products are renowned for dura-

bility that greatly exceeds that of our competitors (see the graph 

below for a comparison of connecting link fatigue strengths).

2. Basic Technologies

These distinctive qualities are primarily underpinned by basic 

technologies for materials, heat-treatment, and other applica-

tions that the Company has developed, but also by our prowess 

in manufacturing technologies for multiple small-lot production. 

To establish these technological capabilities and the impressive 

record of accomplishment maintained by the Group, persistent 

investment in R&D and production facilities has been essential. 

In industries where most companies are small scale, the 

Group’s capacity for investment has been a source of its com-

petitive strength.

3. Product Lineup

Our extensive product lineup includes drive chains, small and 

large-sized conveyor chains, plastic chains, and cable and hose 

protection and guidance products. This rich lineup affords solutions-

based services tailored to client needs and has enhanced the 

Group’s competitive edge over its peers.

Growth Drivers

1.  Customer Buying Practices and Qualitative Changes in  

Investment Attitudes

The recent worldwide economic slowdown and deterioration in 

company capital spending and parts procurement have reduced 

capital investment and cut budgets for parts procurement in our 

business segment. Nonetheless, an increase in retail prices result-

ing from spiking raw material costs has lead to a shrinking price 

differential between Tsubaki chains and less expensive but infe-

rior chains, making our competitive advantages more apparent.

 The distinctive durability, noise resistance, and lightness of 

the Group’s products, as well as its strength in offering solutions-

based services, are particularly well-suited to the structural 

changes now facing clients. This has been one factor behind our 

rising market share.
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Our Commitment

  To raise our global market share from 24% to 28% by 

fiscal 2011 by utilizing our technological advantages 

and solutions capabilities to increase our customer base

Power Transmission Products Segment

Chain Operations

Operating Segments

A comparison of connecting link fatigue strengths 
(based on the results of tests conducted by the 
Tsubaki Group)

Tsubaki products
Domestic and 
international 

competitor products

100 45–23

Taking the fatigue strength of the Tsubaki Group 
roller chain as 100, competitor products values 
ranged from 23–45.

>

Tadashi Ichikawa
Chain Division  
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2. Promote Further Globalization

The Group maintains an overall share of 24% in the global industrial-

use chain market, but this varies significantly from region to 

region. While market share is nearly 70% in Japan and around 

30% in the U.S. and Canada, it has not yet reached 10% in 

Latin America, Europe, and China.

 The Group is recognized for the superior quality of its products 

in Japan and North America, and is utilizing this appeal in other 

regions to further increase its global market share.

3. Aggressively Focus on Growth Industries

Surging crude oil and raw material prices have had serious reper-

cussions for corporate sales and earnings. Factors such as the 

switch to bio-ethanol fuels have led to steep rises in grain prices 

and created problems for countries. On the other hand, these 

trends have created unprecedented shifts in the materials sec-

tors, such as mining and grain farming. We are aggressively 

focusing on these areas to realize the potential for broadening 

our client base. In these business segments, we have been 

steadily promoting strategies to take advantage of changing 

trends and our initiatives are starting to reap rewards.

Fiscal 2008 Results

Increased Revenues Despite a Deteriorating  

External Environment

Sales increased 2.5% year on year, to ¥49.8 billion. The worldwide 

economy slowed and adverse business conditions depressed 

corporate earnings. However, even as capital investment dropped 

in the second half of the fiscal year in major developed countries, 

the Group continued to increase market share, underscoring its 

confidence in maintaining sales growth.

 In Japan, by client industry segment, sales to railroads and 

other heavy industry customers were particularly strong. In addi-

tion, brisk exports to the machine tool industry also supported 

sales growth.

 By product, sales of chains for large conveyor systems in-

creased by double digits over the previous year. Meanwhile, sales 

of plastic chains surged nearly 60% after Yamakyu Chain Co., Ltd., 

was made into a consolidated subsidiary in April 2006.

Overseas Market Penetration and Broadening of  

Customer Sectors Reaps Major Rewards

Chain operations successfully developed new markets and ex-

panded client sectors after comparatively lagging behind in these 

endeavors. In Europe, we won major orders for reclaimed chains 

and sprockets. Products that incorporate these devices are ulti-

mately being used for iron ore conveyance systems in Australia, 

and the Tsubaki Group is receiving orders based on the acclaim 

for the technological capabilities of its distinctive products.

Business Targets and Strategies for Fiscal 2009 and Beyond

Target Ongoing Stable Sales Growth and 

Further Profit Margin Gains

The new STEP10 medium-term management plan targets sales 

growth of 5.8% annually for Chain operations. This represents a 

slowdown from average annual growth of 8.9% over the previous 

three years (fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2008) on concerns about a 

global economic slowdown, steeply rising raw material prices, and 

currency fluctuations. Nonetheless, the Group plans to maintain 

steady growth in Chain operations by increasing market share.

 STEP10 calls for an increase in the operating income margin 

of about 0.5% compared with fiscal 2008, as prices are increased 

and productivity continues improving, offsetting the negative 

 effects of high raw material costs.

 The Group is promoting the following strategies for Chain 

 operations to achieve its STEP10 sales and income goals.

1.  Seek Global Market Leadership in Large Conveyor  

Chain Systems

Sales and other performance by market, particularly in Latin 

America and Australia, and by client sector were discussed 

above. The Group will redouble its efforts to sell products to 

aluminum, steel, and other basic materials industries, mining-

related industries, and the sugar-refining and food industries.

2. Promote Growth in the Conveyor Equipment Business

The Group is focusing on marketing not only chains but also in-

tegrated product systems that utilize chains. Specifically, we plan 

to launch new products such as the Zip Chain Lifter that have 

tremendous growth potential. Moreover, we are actively develop-

ing gripper chains and other high-performance chains used in 

sheet film conveyors and other products.

3. Hone the Distinctive Features of Our Products

The G7 Roller Chain, which has twice the wear and lifespan of 

earlier models, was introduced in fiscal 2007 and is currently 

undergoing comparative testing with chains from competing 

manufacturers. These tests are being carried out at client work-

sites to highlight the quality advantages and appeal of the new 

model. Furthermore, the Group is beginning to develop new Brit-

ish Standard (BS) Roller Chains that have more than twice the 

wear-resistant qualities of existing models. We intend to intro-

duce and market these models from fiscal 2010.

1.  Market share figures noted in this section are all derived from Company analysis.
2.  Segment results figures are from managerial accounts and not from financial 

accounts.
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Basic Segment Data

Our Competitive Advantages

Timing chain drive systems are used to drive camshafts in automotive 

engines. They are a key component in automotive engines, and the 

Tsubaki Group holds a 37% global share in the sales of timing chains.

 The systems are composed of tensioners and other compo-

nents for absorbing expansion in timing chains and chains. One 

of the Group’s major strengths is its ability to furnish not only the 

chains themselves but also their many peripheral parts into inte-

grated systems for its clients. Our global market share of 37%, 

as noted, is for timing chain drive systems. Currently, Tsubaki 

brand automotive parts in one form or another are installed in 

around 50% of the automobiles manufactured worldwide.

 Market share for timing chain drive systems has increased 

steadily from 33% in fiscal 2006 to 34% in fiscal 2007 and 37% 

in fiscal 2008. Our market share has increased on the back of 

the shift in camshaft drive parts from belts to chains and the many 

competitive advantages of the Tsubaki brand, including durability 

and quietness. These advantages are recognized by automakers 

worldwide and have helped the Group expand its client base.

Growth Drivers

The slowdown in the global economy and flagging automobile 

sales are clearly creating some difficult conditions in our industry. 

However, the following points explain why we believe that the 

Group’s Automotive Parts operations can continue registering 

growth by swiftly and accurately responding to the structural 

changes now occurring in the automotive industry.

1. Shift from Belts to Chains in Camshaft Drives

Innovative new lightweight technologies for chains have been 

ushering in a global shift from belts with older kinds of camshaft 

drive to chains, which have superior durability and are more suit-

able for high-performance engines. Indeed, the portion of timing 

drive systems with chains instead of belts increased from about 

43% in fiscal 2001 to approximately 50% in fiscal 2007. We ex-

pect this trend to continue as engines assembled in Europe, 

China, and other countries where the switchover to chains has 

lagged, picks up momentum.

2. Globalization of Automakers

Globalization among automakers is accelerating not only in vehicle 

assembly but also in design, development, parts procurement, 

and other areas. These trends make it essential for parts makers 

to also develop international operations. As such, the Tsubaki 

Group’s global operating network, which comprises production 

bases in five key locations, is ideally suited for globalization.

Trends in segment sales for the past three years 
and plans for the next three years

Our Commitment

  To further expand the timing chain drive systems business, 

particularly with non-Japanese automakers, and set the 

stage for consistent growth through active investment to 

ensure stable supply and increased production

Power Transmission Products Segment
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3.  Keener Awareness of Environmental Protection and  

Energy-Saving Needs

For automakers, initiatives for environmental protection and energy 

saving are essential for survival as crude oil prices continue rising 

rapidly. Japanese automakers, which are ahead of their peers in 

terms of responding to these needs, have been increasing their 

market share worldwide, while automakers in the U.S. and Europe 

are also stepping up their efforts to improve the performance of 

engines and components. These trends augur well for the Tsubaki 

brand to further increase its market share based on the Group’s 

fine-tuned focus on technology and product development.

Fiscal 2008 Results

Overcame Adversities to Rapidly Raise our Global  

Market Share

Sales rose steeply, climbing 20.4% year on year, to ¥53.6 billion. 

Operating conditions were severe, as auto production declined 

on a unit basis by around 5% in Japan and about 3% in the U.S., 

while staying almost flat in Europe. Nevertheless, the Tsubaki 

Group’s global market share increased more than three percent-

age points, thanks to the competitive edge we gained from our 

product quality and global production and marketing networks. 

The Group was successful in acquiring new orders from non-

Japanese automakers in Europe, North America, South Korea, 

and other regions and countries.

Continued to Improve Productivity

The ordinary income margin climbed by about one percentage 

point. Although steeply rising crude oil and raw material costs 

were detrimental to earnings, these were offset by initiatives to 

improve productivity.

Ongoing Expansion for Overseas Subsidiaries

Orders from domestic car manufacturers remained brisk, while 

production increased substantially at overseas subsidiaries. In 

particular, sales at U.S. Tsubaki, Inc. (UST), increased more than 

40% in the previous fiscal year, while its ordinary income doubled 

in the same period. At Tsubakimoto Automotive (Shanghai) Co., 

Ltd. (TAS), a newly consolidated subsidiary in China, sales and 

income both surged, and it was a major contributor to the re-

gional results of the Automotive Parts operations. Tsubakimoto 

Automotive (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (TAT), nearly doubled its income 

and has continued recording solid growth.

Business Targets and Strategies for Fiscal 2009 and Beyond

Set Sights on Strengthening Long-Term Growth Potential

Under STEP10, the forecast for Automotive Parts operations 

sales is a yearly growth rate of 2.4%. Considering the average 

annual growth rate for the three years from fiscal 2005 to fiscal 

2008 was 18.3%, this represents a significant slowdown. How-

ever, our focus is on medium- to long-term growth rather than on 

bolstering sales and income in the immediate future. In addition, 

the plan aims to build a foundation for Automotive Parts opera-

tions that can maintain consistent high-growth capabilities going 

forward. As such, toward increasing sales we have ambitious 

capital investment plans aimed at achieving mass production of 

power-drive chains, which we are targeting to become the second 

core product in our Automotive Parts operations.

Decentralize Domestic Production

The Group’s automotive parts manufacturing has thus far been 

concentrated at the Saitama plant, where production has contin-

ued for many years at full capacity and uninterrupted. However, 

unforeseen circumstances could halt production for an extended 

period, resulting in a loss of consumer confidence. As such, the 

decentralization of production has become an urgent priority. 

Consequently, we plan to shift a portion of production capacity 

from the Saitama plant to the Kyotanabe plant in fiscal 2009.

Increase Production

Capital investment in Automotive Parts operations will be in-

creased from ¥5.0 billion over the past two years to ¥7.2 billion 

in fiscal 2009 and ¥9.2 billion in fiscal 2010. This rapid increase 

in investment is aimed at accelerating the construction of new 

plants and adding new production lines. Specifically, a new facil-

ity will be constructed at the Saitama plant, where power-drive 

chain production capacity will be added. At TAT, we plan to in-

crease the number of production lines and commence operations 

at a yet-to-be-built new plant.

1.  Market share figures noted in this section are all derived from Company analysis.
2.  Segment results figures are from managerial accounts and not from financial 

accounts.

Tsubakimoto Chain Co.

Tsubakimoto Automotive 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Tsubakimoto Europe B.V.
U.S. Tsubaki, Inc.

Tsubakimoto Automotive (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Five-point global production system for automotive parts—Responding to 
automakers’ globalization
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Basic Segment Data

Our Competitive Advantages

In Power Transmission Units and Components operations, Tsubaki 

Emerson Co. (TEM), the core company, has a varied and extensive 

product lineup that includes reducers, power cylinders (with a 

50% market share in Japan), locking devices, and cam clutches 

(80% share in Japan). All of these products are notable for their 

unique specifications and performance features that require 

 formidable engineering skills superior to those offered in widely 

used products.

Growth Drivers

Clients demand products with superior drive efficiency and 

durability now that needs for environmental preservation and 

energy conservation are running high. These trends play into 

TEM’s strengths as a technology and development-oriented  

enterprise that creates products and solutions tailored to its  

clients’ needs.

 The demand for components that are bundled into integrated 

units rather than stand-alone products has been increasing in 

recent years. This trend underscores the Group’s competitive 

edge afforded by its wide-ranging product lineup.

Fiscal 2008 Results

Sales were ¥27.9 billion, up 3.7% year on year. By client, automotive, 

steel, shipbuilding, machine tools, and other industries helped 

buoy sales. Sales to liquid crystal display (LCD) IT-related indus-

tries were sluggish in the first half of the fiscal year but recovered 

rapidly in the second half.

 By product, sales of cam clutches—one of TEM’s distinctive 

offerings—increased by double figures, while sales of reducers 

were firm. Sales for machine tool and various equipment applica-

tions fell from the previous year owing to the weakening economy. 

Income margins narrowed due to high input and raw material costs 

and U.S. dollar depreciation in the second half of the term.

Business Targets and Strategies for Fiscal 2009 and Beyond

The STEP10 medium-term management plan targets sales growth 

of 5% annually for Power Transmission Units and Components 

operations. It also calls for growth in the ordinary income margin 

of nearly 2% over the three years. To achieve these goals we in-

tend to promote the following two strategies:

1. Further Tap into Overseas Markets

Further penetrating overseas markets connects to realizing  

sustainable growth. We will focus resources on making inroads 

into the European market and China and other Asian markets. To 

achieve this we intend to leverage the drive efficiency and other 

distinctive qualities of our products, including Japan’s top brand 

of cam clutches.

2. Step up Production and Procurement Abroad

For production, we plan to shift some output from Japan to the 

Shanghai subsidiary. We also intend to increase the rate of overseas 

materials and parts procurement from its current level of 17% in 

fiscal 2008. We recognize that these endeavors will further increase 

our ability to resist the negative effects of currency fluctuations.

1.  Market share figures noted in this section are all derived from Company analysis.
2.  Segment results figures are from managerial accounts and not from financial 

accounts.

Our Commitment

  To increase the overseas portion of the sales mix to more 

than 22% over three years from its current level of 20%, 

and accelerate overseas production and procurement to 

maintain consistent growth

Power Transmission Products Segment

Power Transmission Units 
and Components Operations

Operating Segments
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Basic Segment Data

Our Competitive Advantages

The intensification of competition, as clients now want to use 

production lines and logistics and conveyance systems that stand 

apart for their special features, augurs well for our growth. For 

example, the automotive industry has recognized that our auto-

motive body paint shop conveyor systems are beneficial in that 

they highlight the qualities of their paints. The largest automakers 

worldwide have adopted our systems as the global standard. 

Growth Drivers

We specialize in techno-oriented, new developments and innova-

tive products that meet individual needs.

 For example, we hold an overwhelming market share in auto-

matic roll paper feeding systems for the newspaper industry and 

in the automotive body paint shop conveyor systems for the au-

tomotive industry. Going forward, we are targeting further growth 

through leveraging our technological capabilities.

Fiscal 2008 Results

Sales increased 3.1% year on year, to ¥33.6 billion. Large orders 

to the automobile industry were sluggish, but equipment sales to 

the logistics, newspaper, and pharmaceuticals industries and for 

maintenance services were strong. Tsubakimoto Bulk Systems 

Corp. (TBS), a subsidiary, increased sales of bulk conveyance 

systems for cement industry and other products in India, China, 

and other overseas destinations. Tsubakimoto Mayfran Inc., an-

other subsidiary, registered double-digit sales growth on the 

back of deliveries of chip conveyors for machine tools.

 As a result, income levels for fiscal 2008 increased substan-

tially. The ordinary profit margin rose 6.1%, to 9.8%. This was 

partially a reflection of the additional manufacturing costs 

that were incurred in the previous year in North America due to 

automobile orders, but it also underscores our success in 

strengthening project management systems.

Business Targets and Strategies for Fiscal 2009 and Beyond

The STEP10 medium-term management plan targets average 

annual sales growth of 3.1% for Materials Handling Systems 

operations. We are promoting the following key strategies to build 

the solid underlying foundations that can sustain profitability.

1.  Increase Sales of Solutions- and Innovation-Based  

New Products

The Group is stepping up its technology-centered, solutions-

based marketing activities, placing additional focus on new 

product development and product innovation to meet market 

needs effectively. We are targeting sustainable growth by prioritiz-

ing and developing products that are environmentally and 

globally responsive.

2. Accelerate Overseas Procurement and Increase Productivity

In addition to increasing procurement from China, India, and 

other countries, we will lower cost of sales by accelerating opti-

mized regional production and procurement. We plan to actively 

promote productivity improvements by developing modules for 

important equipment relating to large-scale systems, improving 

quality, and shortening installation times at workplaces.

1.  Market share figures noted in this section are all derived from Company analysis.
2.  Segment results figures are from managerial accounts and not from financial 

accounts.

Our Commitment

  To expand and create markets and customers through 

constantly developing new products and to promote 

solutions-based operations based on our technological 

capabilities. Also, to enhance productivity as a platform 

for maintaining strong underlying earnings

Materials Handling Systems Segment

Materials Handling Systems Operations
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Tamio Miyamoto
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Power Transmission Products Segment

Power Transmission Units and  
Components Operations
Main Lineups

Reducers/Variable speed drives

Linear actuators

Locking devices

Shaft couplings

Cam clutches

Overload protectors

Sprockets

Main Product Lineups

Compact conveyor chains

ATC chains for machine tools

The Tsubaki Group supplies chains that precisely match the needs of a 

variety of industrial sectors, including industrial machinery, machine tools, 

shipbuilding, steel, and IT. Our drive chains command the top global market 

share. We also supply conveyor chains for production lines, plastic chains 

mainly for the food industry, and cable and hose protection and guidance 

products. Furthermore, to meet growing environmental needs, we have 

introduced “eco-chains,” such as recyclable plastic chains. The base for 

the Group’s chain business is the Kyotanabe plant, which boasts the most 

advanced equipment and top-class productivity, making it the world’s lead-

ing chain manufacturing facility.

The Tsubaki Group has an overwhelming domestic market share in timing 

chains for automotive engines. In timing chain drive systems (composed 

of roller chains/silent chains, tensioners, levers, guides, and sprockets), 

which support high performance in automotive engines, we are a leading 

system supplier to the automakers of the world. Our five-point global pro-

duction and supply system, spanning Japan, North America, Europe, 

Thailand, and China, as well as timely technology development and strict 

quality control allow us to fully meet the demanding quality requirements 

of automakers. 

Power drive chains

Reducers

Couplings

New roll paper feeding AGV

High-speed automatic sorting systems

Power Transmission Products Segment

Chain Operations
Main Lineups

Drive chains

Small pitch conveyor chains

Large pitch conveyor chains

Plastic chains

Cable and hose protection and 

 guidance products

Timing chains

Power Transmission Products Segment

Automotive Parts Operations
Main Lineups

Timing chain drive systems (roller   

  chains/silent chains, tensioners,   

levers, guides, sprockets)

Power drive chains

The Tsubaki Group’s Power Transmission Units and Components operations 

provide comprehensive and diverse lineups of products for the power trans-

mission sector. Products include power cylinders (motion control units), 

where we have the top domestic market share, cam clutches, and power 

locks as well as abundant lineups of reducers and variable speed drives, 

and overload protectors that meet industry needs. Responding to the needs 

for high-precision operation and control at even faster speeds, we will 

continue to supply our customers with the best possible power transmis-

sion solutions through our rich product lineups and related combined 

technology.

The Tsubaki Group provides competitive production and distribution  

systems that minimize waste and time. Our product lineups include au-

tomotive body paint shop conveyor systems, high-speed automatic 

sorting systems for the distribution sector, automatic conveyance sys-

tems for the newspaper industry, and storage and picking systems for 

the drug development sector. We also exploit our unique technological 

strength in scrap metal conveyors for machine tools and bulk conveyors 

for industrial waste and incinerator ash. In every sector, we are able to 

propose innovative solutions.

Materials Handling Systems Segment

Materials Handling Systems 
Operations
Main Lineups

Sorting and conveyance systems

Storage and picking systems

Bulk conveyance systems

Scrap metal conveyance and

 coolant processing equipment
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Management System of the Tsubaki Group

The Tsubaki Group is realizing “Global Best,” based on a management system that emphasizes 
results—namely, practical management—over form, such as system creation.

(As of August 28, 2008)

Board of Directors, Corporate Auditors, and Executive Officers

Corporate Auditors (Standing)

Masahiro Takemura
Jiro Miyamoto

Corporate Auditors (Outside)

Masaru Tokuda
Takafumi Watanabe

Senior Managing Executive Officer

Yoshinobu Miyazaki

Managing Executive Officers

Tadasu Suzuki
Masato Kondo
Yoshikazu Kitayama

Senior Executive Officer

Jiro Baba

Executive Officers

Shigeya Tsubakimoto
Toshimitsu Sakai
Toshio Takahashi
Katsuhiko Mio
Hideaki Haruna
Masaya Ushida

Takashi Fukunaga
Chairman, President and  
Representative Director

Makoto Kanehira
Director and Senior Managing Executive Officer
Development and Technology/
Management of Technology (MOT)/
Tsubaki Techno School/ 
Chief Engineer/
Kyotanabe Plant

Tadashi Ichikawa
Director and Senior Managing Executive Officer
Chain and Power Transmission Operations/ 
Chain Division/
President, Tsubaki Emerson Co./ 
Global Best Development/
Kyoto Plant/ 
Hyogo Plant

Toru Fujiwara
Director and Managing Executive Officer
Automotive Parts Division/
Global Best Development/
Saitama Plant

Nobuhiko Miki
Director and Managing Executive Officer
Corporate Social Responsibility Development/
Internal Auditing Department

Isamu Osa
Director and Managing Executive Officer
Management Planning/
Osaka Office

Tamio Miyamoto
Director and Executive Officer
Materials Handling Systems Division/ 
Materials Handling Sales Operations/ 
Global Best Development

Hidetoshi Yajima
Outside Director
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Corporate Governance

How are you responding to this period of dramatic change?

Small decision-making body and smooth operational  

implementation

Our current operating environment is characterized not only by 

continually advancing economic globalization and technological 

innovation but also by extremely unstable currency exchange 

rates and crude oil and raw material prices. Amid these rapidly 

occurring changes, we believe that achieving sustainable growth 

requires swift, precise decision making and strategy formulation 

and smooth operational implementation.

 Founded on this conviction, the Tsubaki Group maintains a 

comparatively small Board of Directors, with 8* directors, to facili-

tate quick response to a rapidly changing external environment. 

 Conversely, the 17* executive officers who make up the execu-

tive officer system, each with a wealth of experience in their 

operational area, utilize their specialized knowledge and skills to 

achieve smooth operational implementation. 

* Of the 17 executive officers, 6 are directors

How are you realizing appropriate oversight and maintaining 

flexibility and transparency in management?

Aggressively and voluntarily utilizing non-Group resources

To realize impartiality, objectivity, and oversight for management, 

we have appointed one outside director, while two of the four 

corporate auditors are outside auditors. 

 Regarding the capital markets, based on the Tsubaki disclo-

sure policy we maintain transparency in management by 

disclosing information in a timely and appropriate manner. More-

over, we do not simply release information; we take positive steps 

to achieve two-way communication with capital markets by pay-

ing careful attention to feedback on our management. 

 Following the biannual Settlement of Accounts and Manage-

ment Strategies presentations, we allow a considerable amount 

of time for investors and analysts to ask questions and to ex-

change opinions. In addition, through such methods as plant 

tours and small meetings, we are increasing the opportunities for 

direct communications with Group directors and officers. We also 

hold management strategy briefings and informal discussions 

with shareholders at the end of the annual meeting of sharehold-

ers. In this way, we do not simply report and explain information 

to shareholders, but rather hold dialogues with them and pay full 

attention to their opinions.

Corporate Governance System

Tsubaki Group IR Initiatives for FY2008

Settlement of Accounts 
and Management 
Strategies presentations

Convened twice; attended by the 
Chairman, the President, and top 
management from each operational 
segment.

Overseas road show Conducted twice, with the President 
giving the presentation. 

Plant tours, small 
meetings

Factory tours conducted three times, 
at the Saitama and Kyotanabe plants. 
Small meetings held twice. 

Participation in investor 
relations (IR) fairs for 
individual investors

Participated twice, including at the 
Nikkei IR Fair. 

Establishment of a 
temporary Tokyo IR office

Established four times, with IR staff 
providing business presentations for 
Tokyo investors and analysts. 
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Compliance and Internal Controls

What are your effective strategies for preventing corporate 

wrongdoing?

In addition to a full program of education and training, it is 

crucially important to foster an ethical corporate manage-

ment mentality among all employees

The Tsubaki Group has created a complete range of guidelines for 

employee behavior. In December 2002, we established the Cor-

porate Work Ethics/Guidelines for Ethical Conduct; in September 

2003, the Risk Management Basic Strategy; in April 2005, Regu-

lations for Handling of Personal Information; and in December 

2005, revised and strengthened Guidelines for Taking Informa-

tion/Equipment Outside the Company. These guidelines apply to 

all employees and we require that they are fully adhered to.

 In addition to regular in-house training corresponding to each 

employee level, the Tsubaki Group designates every February as 

“Strengthening Corporate Ethics Month.” During this month, we 

conduct intensive training for all Group employees, both in Japan 

and overseas, to ensure they are fully aware of our corporate 

work ethics. 

 Through training and education, we aim to achieve our vitally 

important goal of an ethical corporate management mentality in 

all Group employees. This is because it is only when employees 

fully understand the importance of corporate social responsibil-

ity (CSR) for achieving sustained Company growth that they 

develop autonomous and positive attitudes toward fulfilling our 

corporate social responsibilities.

What if a law or internal regulation is violated? 

We have set up ethics helplines, whereby employees can 

easily provide information or seek advice. 

If an employee discovers or suspects that a law or an internal 

regulation has been violated, or is unsure about decisions relat-

ing to operational implementation, we have set up in-house and 

external ethics helplines to enable them to easily provide informa-

tion or seek advice. 

In April 1999, the Tsubaki Group established its mission 

statement, which expresses how in its “drive to be the global 

best” it is focusing the Group’s comprehensive strengths to 

maximize corporate value. Regardless of how the business 

environment changes, we will always remain committed to 

our customers and to manufacturing excellence. We have 

created a booklet describing this philosophy so that each of 

our employees can carry it with them at all times.

The Tsubaki Mission Statement

Recently, most companies have been aggressively conducting 

CSR management. However, beyond conventional CSR, the 

Group’s major CSR strength is in the activities of the CSR 

Advancement Center, established in April 2006. The Center 

integrates and advances Groupwide CSR initiatives intended for 

stakeholders, including for capital markets, society, and employ-

ees. The Center coordinates Group CSR activities, such as 

those relating to legal compliance, environmental preservation, 

information disclosure, and social contribution, which is effec-

tive in achieving cohesive CSR management. In this way, the 

Tsubaki Group integrates the support from all of its stakehold-

ers, thereby enabling the realization of sustainable growth.

Tsubaki Group CSR Management 

Nobuhiko Miki
Director and Managing  
Executive Officer,
Corporate Social  
Responsibility Development

The Tsubaki Mission Statement in Chinese, English, and Japanese
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Converting Kitchen Refuse to Compost,  

and the Eco-Farm

At the Kyotanabe plant, we convert kitchen refuse from 

the employee canteen into compost, using specialized 

equipment. The compost is used on the eco-farm set up by 

employees within the grounds of the plant. Employees with 

an interest in gardening often spend their free time in the 

eco-farm growing vegetables by hand, something they may 

have never had the opportunity to try before. So, not only 

does the farm contribute to recycling resources and raising 

employee awareness of environmental issues, it also con-

tributes to the welfare of employees at the plant. 

How do you carry out environmental activities through  

your main businesses?

In addition to environmental preservation measures carried 

out via production activities, each operational segment devel-

ops environmentally friendly products that connect directly to 

the increased competitiveness of our product lineup. 

An example of our environmentally friendly products is the bear-

ing roller conveyor chain, part of the lube-free series. Switching 

from steel to plastic ball bearings between the bushings and 

rollers has enabled lube-free operation and further minimized 

friction, which equates to reduced energy consumption through 

smaller products. Furthermore, we collect used plastic chains as 

recyclable materials to create Tsubaki recyclable plastic chains, 

which are the same quality as the original. It was the first indus-

trial machinery component in Japan to be registered as an 

EcoLeaf environmental label product. 

In what ways are you contributing to protecting the 

environment through your production activities?

Creating environmental management, and implementing 

initiatives centered on energy saving and recycling.

We are implementing environmental management while also 

regularly holding meetings of the Tsubaki Group Environmental 

Management Committee. Thirteen domestic Tsubaki Group fa-

cilities and six overseas facilities have received ISO14001 

certification. At all facilities, internal environmental auditors 

regularly conduct internal audits to certify in-Group compliance 

and to confirm that environmental management systems are 

operating effectively and that full compliance with all laws and 

regulations is being maintained. Auditors also offer advice to 

further improve their environmental performance. 

 Examples of initiatives at Tsubaki plants to reduce CO2 emis-

sions include: (1) At our Saitama plant, switching from heavy fuel 

oil to city gas for the plant’s boiler fuel, and (2) at our Kyotanabe 

plant, introducing a cogeneration system. 

What social contribution activities are you involved in,  

other than for environmental protection? 

We take part in a wide range of social contribution activities 

to strengthen our bonds of trust with local communities  

Tsubaki engineers from the Kyotanabe plant visit local high 

schools to teach students how to use machinery and equipment. 

During the summer holiday period, we invite children and parents 

from the local community to the plant. We create an original 

program, such as showing how chains are assembled, enabling 

children to see how products are actually made and deepening 

their interest in Japan’s product manufacturing culture.
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Eleven-Year Financial Summary

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	unless	Noted	Otherwise	 ���� �ollars �Note 1�����	�ollars	�Note	1�

	 		 	  2008	 2���� 2���� 2��5 2��4 2��3 2��2 2��1 2��� 1��� 1��82����	 2����	 2��5	 2��4	 2��3	 2��2	 2��1	 2���	 1���	 1��8	 2008

	

Net	sales	 	 ¥167,203	 ¥155,��4��	 ¥14��,����1	 ¥12�,5��3	 ¥11�,141	 ¥11��,�����	 ¥113,��41	 ¥114,2���	 ¥1���,281	 ¥11�,�1�	 ¥128,2�8	 $1,668,858

Operating	income	 	 19,805	 1��,��8	 13,83�	 1�,448	 ��,�51	 ��,351	 ��,�38	 ��,���2	 2,���5	 2,358	 　��,435	 197,677

Income	�loss�	before	income	taxes	and	minority	interests	 	 18,485	 1��,��35	 12,����	 8,5�8	 ��,53��	 2,8��	 2,����1	 22��	 2,��25	 �1,�18�	 5,5�8	 184,503

Net	income	�loss�	 	 10,371	 8,541	 ��,�����	 4,44�	 3,385	 1,531	 1,2�2	 4��5	 1,218	 �1,��15�	 2,����	 103,517

Net	income	�loss�	per	share	�yen	and	����	dollars�	 	 ¥   55.70	 ¥				45�55	 ¥				34���8	 ¥				22�����	 ¥				1���4�	 ¥						����2	 ¥						���2��	 ¥						2�42	 ¥						���3��	 ¥					�8��2�	 ¥				14��8	 $    0.556

�iluted	net	income	�loss�	per	share	�yen	and	����	dollars�	 	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —

Interest	expense:

	 Net		 	 ¥     839	 ¥	 	 	 	 �51	 ¥		 	 	 	���	 ¥				1,1��1	 ¥				1,3��3	 ¥		 	 1,��3��	 ¥				1,585	 ¥	 	 	1,������	 ¥	 	 	1,5����	 ¥	 	 	1,1��3	 ¥	 	 	1,1��2	 $    8,375

	 Gross:		Interest	received	 	 124	 ��3	 85	 34	 ��8	 1�3	 223	 284	 1��2	 2��3	 323	 1,240	

Interest	paid	 	 963	 1,�24	 ��4	 1,1�5	 1,431	 1,��3�	 1,8�8	 1,�5�	 1,��3�	 1,42��	 1,4�5	 9,615

Capital	expenditures	 	 10,225	 1�,8�4	 ��,48�	 3,���8	 3,5���	 2,�42	 1��,1�4	 1�,251	 32,48��	 5,15��	 15,�5�	 102,057

�epreciation	and	amortization	 	 7,302	 5,�48	 5,5��	 5,5�4	 ��,�83	 ��,��3��	 5,��11	 4,321	 4,444	 4,��2�	 4,��2�	 72,877

Total	current	assets	 	 90,534	 �2,���1	 ��8,85��	 ��2,125	 ���,��35	 83,���4	 ��,��5�	 �3,�84	 83,143	 ��2,541	 81,��22	 903,618

Total	current	liabilities	 	 53,959	 58,1���	 5��,33��	 53,8�1	 48,3�5	 52,���2	 58,125	 ��5,3��4	 5�,�8�	 4��,25��	 ��2,224	 538,563

Property,	plant	and	equipment,	net	 	 83,412	 81,�����	 ����,2��3	 ��5,3�4	 ����,3���	 8�,41��	 85,381	 82,1���	 ����,352	 48,24�	 48,83��	 832,542

Total	long-term	liabilities	 	 60,855	 ��8,4��5	 ���,�18	 4�,85�	 5��,��58	 ����,��38	 ����,������	 ��4,�����	 ����,4��4	 2��,3���	 18,��1�	 607,396

Total	assets	 	 202,317	 212,��4�	 1�8,458	 1���,2��3	 1��5,432	 183,2���	 2�1,555	 2�8,8����	 184,4��8	 13��,���1	 14��,����8	 2,019,329

Paid-in	capital	 	 17,077	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 170,443

Retained	earnings	 	 60,318	 51,2���	 44,5��	 3�,344	 3��,1��	 33,���5	 33,5��	 33,48�	 34,�2�	 31,�43	 35,2���	 602,033

Total	shareholders’	equity	 	 81,605	 81,�34	 ����,��8	 ��1,��34	 ����,8��3	 ���,3���	 ��2,����4	 ����,4��3	 ��3,��5�	 ��1,����3	 ��4,�8�	 814,503

Equity	ratio	�%�	 	 40.3	 38�1	 38�8	 4���	 38�1	 32��	 31�1	 31�8	 34���	 44�8	 44��	

ROE	�%�		 	 12.8	 1��8	 8��	 ���4	 5�3	 2�5	 1��	 ����	 1��	 —	 4�2	

�/E	ratio	 	 0.48	 ��52	 ��51	 ����1	 ����5	 1��8	 1�22	 1�18	 1�1��	 ����3	 ����4	

Net	cash	provided	by	operating	activities	 	 ¥  20,873	 ¥	 1�,1���	 ¥		 1�,��81	 ¥				�,����3	 ¥		 	 ��,��5	 ¥		 12,�2�	 ¥				��,����	 ¥	 	 	5,���8	 ¥	 	 	3,2��8	 ¥		 	 ��,�51	 ¥		 	 2,��4�	 $  208,336

Net	cash	�used	in�	provided	by	investing	activities	 	 (11,481)	 �5,8����	 �5,5�5�	 �2,4��5�	 �,���8	 �3,�14�	 �1�,��18�	 �1�,834�	 �28,��55�	 �4,52���	 �4,4��5�	 (114,599)

Net	cash	�used	in�	provided	by	financing	activities	 	 (5,583)	 ���4���	 �5,5����	 ��,412�	 �15,538�	 �14,21���	 �4,243�	 2,�2��	 2��,1����	 2,42��	 1,�21	 (55,715)

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	end	of	the	year	 	 17,745	 14,��18	 1�,�84	 11,5��2	 13,��81	 12,41��	 1��,�����	 24,853	 2��,58��	 24,8���	 2�,�2�	 177,110

Number	of	shares	outstanding	at	end	of	the	year*	�thousands�	 	 186,077	 18��,4�2	 18��,541	 18��,��13	 188,544	 188,��23	 1�1,38��	 1�1,4���	 1�1,4���	 1�1,4���	 1�2,4���	

Number	of	employees	 	 5,371	 5,114	 4,����5	 4,����5	 4,����	 4,8��1	 4,�1��	 5,23��	 5,44�	 5,3��8	 5,��2�	

*	Excluding	treasury	stock

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
Years	ended	March	31
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	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	unless	Noted	Otherwise	 ���� �ollars �Note 1�����	�ollars	�Note	1�

	 		 	  2008	 2���� 2���� 2��5 2��4 2��3 2��2 2��1 2��� 1��� 1��82����	 2����	 2��5	 2��4	 2��3	 2��2	 2��1	 2���	 1���	 1��8	 2008

	

Net	sales	 	 ¥167,203	 ¥155,��4��	 ¥14��,����1	 ¥12�,5��3	 ¥11�,141	 ¥11��,�����	 ¥113,��41	 ¥114,2���	 ¥1���,281	 ¥11�,�1�	 ¥128,2�8	 $1,668,858

Operating	income	 	 19,805	 1��,��8	 13,83�	 1�,448	 ��,�51	 ��,351	 ��,�38	 ��,���2	 2,���5	 2,358	 　��,435	 197,677

Income	�loss�	before	income	taxes	and	minority	interests	 	 18,485	 1��,��35	 12,����	 8,5�8	 ��,53��	 2,8��	 2,����1	 22��	 2,��25	 �1,�18�	 5,5�8	 184,503

Net	income	�loss�	 	 10,371	 8,541	 ��,�����	 4,44�	 3,385	 1,531	 1,2�2	 4��5	 1,218	 �1,��15�	 2,����	 103,517

Net	income	�loss�	per	share	�yen	and	����	dollars�	 	 ¥   55.70	 ¥				45�55	 ¥				34���8	 ¥				22�����	 ¥				1���4�	 ¥						����2	 ¥						���2��	 ¥						2�42	 ¥						���3��	 ¥					�8��2�	 ¥				14��8	 $    0.556

�iluted	net	income	�loss�	per	share	�yen	and	����	dollars�	 	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —

Interest	expense:

	 Net		 	 ¥     839	 ¥	 	 	 	 �51	 ¥		 	 	 	���	 ¥				1,1��1	 ¥				1,3��3	 ¥		 	 1,��3��	 ¥				1,585	 ¥	 	 	1,������	 ¥	 	 	1,5����	 ¥	 	 	1,1��3	 ¥	 	 	1,1��2	 $    8,375

	 Gross:		Interest	received	 	 124	 ��3	 85	 34	 ��8	 1�3	 223	 284	 1��2	 2��3	 323	 1,240	

Interest	paid	 	 963	 1,�24	 ��4	 1,1�5	 1,431	 1,��3�	 1,8�8	 1,�5�	 1,��3�	 1,42��	 1,4�5	 9,615

Capital	expenditures	 	 10,225	 1�,8�4	 ��,48�	 3,���8	 3,5���	 2,�42	 1��,1�4	 1�,251	 32,48��	 5,15��	 15,�5�	 102,057

�epreciation	and	amortization	 	 7,302	 5,�48	 5,5��	 5,5�4	 ��,�83	 ��,��3��	 5,��11	 4,321	 4,444	 4,��2�	 4,��2�	 72,877

Total	current	assets	 	 90,534	 �2,���1	 ��8,85��	 ��2,125	 ���,��35	 83,���4	 ��,��5�	 �3,�84	 83,143	 ��2,541	 81,��22	 903,618

Total	current	liabilities	 	 53,959	 58,1���	 5��,33��	 53,8�1	 48,3�5	 52,���2	 58,125	 ��5,3��4	 5�,�8�	 4��,25��	 ��2,224	 538,563

Property,	plant	and	equipment,	net	 	 83,412	 81,�����	 ����,2��3	 ��5,3�4	 ����,3���	 8�,41��	 85,381	 82,1���	 ����,352	 48,24�	 48,83��	 832,542

Total	long-term	liabilities	 	 60,855	 ��8,4��5	 ���,�18	 4�,85�	 5��,��58	 ����,��38	 ����,������	 ��4,�����	 ����,4��4	 2��,3���	 18,��1�	 607,396

Total	assets	 	 202,317	 212,��4�	 1�8,458	 1���,2��3	 1��5,432	 183,2���	 2�1,555	 2�8,8����	 184,4��8	 13��,���1	 14��,����8	 2,019,329

Paid-in	capital	 	 17,077	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 1��,�����	 170,443

Retained	earnings	 	 60,318	 51,2���	 44,5��	 3�,344	 3��,1��	 33,���5	 33,5��	 33,48�	 34,�2�	 31,�43	 35,2���	 602,033

Total	shareholders’	equity	 	 81,605	 81,�34	 ����,��8	 ��1,��34	 ����,8��3	 ���,3���	 ��2,����4	 ����,4��3	 ��3,��5�	 ��1,����3	 ��4,�8�	 814,503

Equity	ratio	�%�	 	 40.3	 38�1	 38�8	 4���	 38�1	 32��	 31�1	 31�8	 34���	 44�8	 44��	

ROE	�%�		 	 12.8	 1��8	 8��	 ���4	 5�3	 2�5	 1��	 ����	 1��	 —	 4�2	

�/E	ratio	 	 0.48	 ��52	 ��51	 ����1	 ����5	 1��8	 1�22	 1�18	 1�1��	 ����3	 ����4	

Net	cash	provided	by	operating	activities	 	 ¥  20,873	 ¥	 1�,1���	 ¥		 1�,��81	 ¥				�,����3	 ¥		 	 ��,��5	 ¥		 12,�2�	 ¥				��,����	 ¥	 	 	5,���8	 ¥	 	 	3,2��8	 ¥		 	 ��,�51	 ¥		 	 2,��4�	 $  208,336

Net	cash	�used	in�	provided	by	investing	activities	 	 (11,481)	 �5,8����	 �5,5�5�	 �2,4��5�	 �,���8	 �3,�14�	 �1�,��18�	 �1�,834�	 �28,��55�	 �4,52���	 �4,4��5�	 (114,599)

Net	cash	�used	in�	provided	by	financing	activities	 	 (5,583)	 ���4���	 �5,5����	 ��,412�	 �15,538�	 �14,21���	 �4,243�	 2,�2��	 2��,1����	 2,42��	 1,�21	 (55,715)

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	end	of	the	year	 	 17,745	 14,��18	 1�,�84	 11,5��2	 13,��81	 12,41��	 1��,�����	 24,853	 2��,58��	 24,8���	 2�,�2�	 177,110

Number	of	shares	outstanding	at	end	of	the	year*	�thousands�	 	 186,077	 18��,4�2	 18��,541	 18��,��13	 188,544	 188,��23	 1�1,38��	 1�1,4���	 1�1,4���	 1�1,4���	 1�2,4���	

Number	of	employees	 	 5,371	 5,114	 4,����5	 4,����5	 4,����	 4,8��1	 4,�1��	 5,23��	 5,44�	 5,3��8	 5,��2�	

*	Excluding	treasury	stock
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Report and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
for Fiscal 2008 (Consolidated)

Highlights and Main Points

 Overall Operating Results

�ales	and	income	reached	historical	highs	for	the	third	

straight	fiscal	year,	and	increased	for	the	sixth	consecutive	

fiscal	year�	The	overseas	sales	ratio	continued	increasing,	

and	return	on	equity	�ROE�	was	12�8%	�up	2��	percentage	

points��

 Results by Business Segment

�ales	and	operating	income	increased	in	all	segments,	but	

particularly	 in	the	Materials	Handling	�ystems	segment	

where	the	operating	income	margin	improved	substantially	

and	reached	double	figures,	principally	due	to	design	and	

manufacturing	cost-cutting	measures�	

 Results by Region

�ales	and	income	increased	in	the	four	main	regions	of	

Japan,	North	America,	Europe,	and	Asia	and	Oceania�	Of	

particular	note	was	the	fact	that	operating	income	in	Asia	

and	Oceania	exceeded	that	of	Japan�

 Financial Standing and Cash Flow

The	debt	to	equity	��/E�	ratio	�net�	continued	improving,	while	

free	cash	flow	doubled	year	on	year�

Detailed Analysis of Management Performance—Major 

Items on the Income Statement 

Net Sales

The	Tsubaki	Group’s	sales	are	susceptible	to	trends	in	private-sector	

capital	investment	and	automotive	sales,	and	both	of	these	were	

sluggish	in	Japan,	the	����,	Europe,	and	other	developed	countries�	

Nonetheless,	consolidated	net	sales	increased	���4%	year	on	year,	to	

¥1����,2�3	million,	reaching	a	previous	historical	high�

	 In	Japan,	sales	increased	���3%	year	on	year�	�hipments	of	chains	

and	of	power	transmission	units	and	components	rose,	particularly	

for	steel,	machine	tool,	and	automotive	applications�	In	addition	to	

growth	for	both	of	these	businesses,	sales	to	the	LC�	IT	industry	

recovered	in	the	second	half	of	the	fiscal	year	after	contracting	in	the	

previous	term�	In	Automotive	Parts	operations,	demand	was	gener-

ally	firm,	underpinned	by	brisk	exports�

	 Overseas	sales	climbed	���5%	year	on	year,	and	the	overseas	sales	

ratio	rose,	to	3���5%�	In	particular,	sales	in	North	America	increased	

23���%,	supported	by	rising	automotive	parts	sales	and	major	orders	

in	the	Materials	Handling	�ystems	segment,	while	the	Company	in-

creased	sales	in	Europe	8��%	by	tapping	into	new	customers�

Operating Income

Operating	income	advanced	23���%	year	on	year,	to	¥1�,8�5	million,	

and	the	operating	income	margin	rose	1�5	percentage	points,	to	

11�8%�

	 As	operations	expanded,	depreciation	and	amortization	increased	

about	¥1,3��	million,	helping	to	push	up	the	selling,	general	and	

administrative	��G&A�	cost	to	sales	ratio	by	��2	percentage	point�	

This	was	negated	by	advancing	sales	and	improvement	in	the	cost	

of	sales	ratio	by	1���	percentage	points�	
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Ordinary Income

Ordinary	income	rose	by	24�1%	year	on	year,	to	¥18,�51	million�	

	 Losses	on	the	sale	and	elimination	of	fixed	assets	�about	¥4���	

million�	and	growing	losses	on	forex	differences	compared	with	the	

previous	fiscal	year	�about	¥��8�	million�	were	partially	offset	by	a	net	

improvement	in	financial	earnings	�around	¥11�	million�	and	declining	

other	net	non-operating	expenses	�around	¥��4�	million��	Furthermore,	

net	non-operating	income	deteriorated	by	around	¥28�	million�

Net Income

Net	income	increased	21�4%	year	on	year,	to	¥1�,3��1	million�

	 Extraordinary	income	amounted	to	¥434	million,	marking	a	steep	

decline	of	about	¥3,1�3	million	from	the	previous	term�	This	was	

mainly	due	to	the	elimination	of	income	from	the	sales	of	negotiable	

securities	�about	¥3,4��	million�	that	had	been	recorded	in	the	pre-

vious	 fiscal	 year�	 However,	 the	 Company	 did	 not	 record	 any	

extraordinary	losses	�these	totaled	about	¥44�	million	in	the	previ-

ous	fiscal	year��

	 As	a	result,	ROE	was	12�8%,	which	represented	a	year	on	year	

improvement	of	2��	percentage	points�

	 Reflecting	the	healthy	operating	results	recorded	in	the	fiscal	

year	under	review,	the	Company	decided	to	pay	dividends	of	¥8	per	

share,	an	increase	of	¥1	from	the	previous	fiscal	year�	The	consoli-

dated	dividend	payout	was	down	1��	percentage	point,	at	14�4%�	

We	have	increased	the	retained	earnings	ratio	in	order	to	decentral-

ize	 production	 to	 other	 plants	 as	 a	 risk	 avoidance	 measure,	

particularly	in	Automotive	Parts	operations,	and	to	aggressively	im-

prove	production	capabilities�	We	intend	to	maximize	the	Group’s	

enterprise	value	over	the	medium	to	 long	term	by	decentralizing		

production	basis	and	actively	pursuing	growth�

Analysis of Results by Business Segment and Segment Data

Segment Data by Business

1�	Power	Transmission	Products	�egment

Net	sales	in	the	segment	totaled	¥133,5��5	million,	a	rise	of	8���%	

year	on	year,	operating	income	amounted	to	¥1�,42�	million,	an	

increase	of	11�8%,	and	the	operating	income	margin	was	14�5%,	

an	increase	of	��4	percentage	point�

	 In	Chain	operations,	sales	gains	were	especially	strong	for	large	

conveyor	systems	and	plastic	chains�

	 In	Power	Transmission	�nits	and	Components	operations,	sales	

of	clutches	and	reducers	and	variable	speed	drives	were	firm�	How-

ever,	sales	of	products	such	as	actuators	declined�

	 In	Automotive	Parts	operations,	overseas	subsidiaries’	sales	and	

income	increased	markedly,	with	sales	increasing	in	��T	�North	

America�,	in	TAT	�Thailand�,	as	well	as	in	TA�	�China�,	which	was	newly	

included	in	the	scope	of	consolidation	from	fiscal	2��8�

2�	Materials	Handling	�ystems	�egment

Net	sales	in	the	segment	were	¥33,���8	million,	an	increase	of		2�8%	

year	on	year,	operating	income	totaled	¥3,�5�	million,	a	rise	of	

11�%,	and	the	operating	income	margin	was	11��%,	representing	a	

substantial	improvement	of	���1	percentage	points�	�harply	improving	

income	and	income	margins	reflected	thorough	efforts	to	strengthen	

project	management	in	the	wake	of	large	additional	outlays	for	proj-

ects	in	North	America	in	the	previous	fiscal	year�
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Segment Data by Region

1�	Japan

Net	sales	were	¥13�,545	million,	an	increase	of	3�3%	year	on	year,	

operating	income	totaled	¥1��,48��	million,	up	4�5%,	and	the	operating	

income	margin	was	12���%,	up	��1	percentage	point�	Growth	registered	

by	the	parent	company	and	by	subsidiaries	such	as	Tsubakimoto	Bulk	

�ystems	and	Tsubakimoto	Mayfran	fueled	rising	sales	and	income�

2�	North	America

Net	sales	were	¥3��,��3	million,	an	increase	of	24���%	year	on	year,	

operating	income	was	¥3,14��	million,	up	141��%,	and	the	operating	

income	margin	improved	substantially	by	4�2	percentage	points,	to	

8���%�	Income	margins	have	improved	mainly	on	the	back	of	continu-

ing	growth	in	Automotive	Parts	operations,	especially	from	timing	

chain	drive	systems,	and	from	the	Materials	Handling	�ystems	seg-

ment	in	tandem	with	further	increases	in	market	share�

3�	Europe

Net	sales	were	¥1�,���1	million,	an	increase	of	1��2%	year	on	year,	

operating	income	totaled	¥1,2�5	million,	up	42�5%,	and	the	operating	

income	margin	improved	2���	percentage	points,	to	12��%�	In	Chain	

operations,	the	Company	was	successful	in	winning	major	orders	for	

chains	for	large	conveyor	systems	in	Europe	for	the	first	time�	At	the	

same	time,	Automotive	Parts	operations	made	steady	progress	in	

attracting	orders	from	non-Japanese	car	manufacturers�

4�	Asia	and	Oceania

Net	sales	were	¥11,�����	million,	an	increase	of	58���%	year	on	year,	

operating	income	was	¥1,����	million,	up	8��1%,	and	the	operating	

income	margin	was	1�����%,	an	improvement	of	2��	percentage	points�	

�ubsidiaries	in	Automotive	Parts	operations	posted	surging	earnings,	

particularly	in	China	�businesses	were	newly	consolidated	in	fiscal	

2��8�	and	in	Thailand�

Analysis of Financial Condition

Assets

Total	assets	stood	at	¥2�2,31��	million	at	the	end	of	the	fiscal	year,	

down	4��%,	or	¥1�,423	million,	from	the	end	of	the	previous	term�	

Although	the	Group	has	steadily	expanded	its	business	performance,	

its	consistent	efforts	to	use	capital	outlays	efficiently	in	paring	down	

the	balance	sheet	as	much	as	possible	led	to	a	decrease	in	total	

assets	during	fiscal	2��8�	Property,	plant	and	equipment,	net,	rose	

¥1,��1��	million	as	capital	investment	increased,	but	total	current	

assets	and	total	investments	and	other	assets	declined	¥2,42��	

million	and	¥�,��12	million,	respectively�	

Liabilities

Total	liabilities	stood	at	¥114,814	million	at	the	end	of	the	fiscal	

2��8,	down	��3%,	or	¥11,��5��	million,	from	a	year	earlier�	The	bal-

ance	of	interest-bearing	debt	fell	¥2,����	million,	or	���1%,	to	¥3�,315	

million�	In	addition,	because	of	a	banking	holiday	at	the	end	of	the	

fiscal	year,	trade	notes	and	accounts	payable	fell	¥3,����	million,	and	

deferred	tax	liabilities	decreased	¥3,2�4	million	because	of	a	con-

traction	in	valuation	difference	on	negotiable	securities,	which	helped	

depress	total	liabilities�

Net Assets

Total	net	assets	stood	at	¥8��,5�3	million	at	the	end	of	the	fiscal	

2��8,	marking	an	increase	of	¥1,334	million,	or	1�5%,	from	a	year	

earlier�	As	a	result,	net	asset	value	per	share	increased	¥���3��,	to	

¥438�5���	The	shareholders’	equity	ratio	rose	2�2	percentage	points,	

to	4��3%�
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Analysis of Cash Flows

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net	cash	from	operating	activities	was	¥2�,8��3	million,	an	increase	

of	¥1�,������	million	from	the	previous	year�	

	 Income	before	 income	taxes	and	minority	 interests	came	to	

¥18,485	million,	up	¥85�	million,	and	depreciation	and	amortization	

rose	¥1,354	million,	to	¥��,3�2	million,	while	income	taxes	paid	came	

to	¥��,8��	million�

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net	cash	used	in	investing	activities	was	¥11,481	million,	an	increase	

of	¥5,���2	million	from	the	previous	year�	

	 Purchases	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	totaled	¥11,343	

million,	and	included	construction	of	a	new	office	building,	construc-

tion	at	automotive	parts	production	facilities,	and	other	purposes�	

This	represented	a	year-on-year	increase	of	¥1,���4	million�

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net	cash	used	in	financing	activities	totaled	¥5,583	million,	an		

increase	of	¥4,�3��	million	from	the	previous	year�	

	 Cash	was	used	for	purchases	of	treasury	stock	�¥1,�8�	million�	

and	for	dividends	paid	�¥1,3�8	million��	However,	interest-bearing	

debt	declined	���1%,	or	¥2,����	million,	from	the	previous	year�

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The	balance	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents	was	¥1��,��45	million	at	

the	end	of	the	fiscal	year,	an	increase	of	¥3,12��	million	from	a	year	

earlier�

Risk Factors and Countermeasures

Risks from Surging Raw Material Prices

The	Group	has	been	revising	product	prices	and	made	concerted	

efforts	to	reduce	the	cost	of	sales	through	higher	productivity�	How-

ever,	it	may	not	be	able	to	offset	the	repercussions	of	price	hikes	if	

raw	material	prices	continue	rising	sharply	over	a	protracted	period�

Disaster Risks

A	natural	disaster	or	other	event	could	negatively	affect	production	

capability	at	one	or	more	of	the	Groups’	plants�	To	cope	with	this	risk,	

it	is	taking	steps	to	reinforce	its	plants	against	earthquake	damage,	

decentralize	production,	and	enact	other	measures�

Risks to Overseas Business Activities

Political	or	economic	upheaval	in	countries	and	regions	where	the	

Group	markets	its	products	and	procures	materials	and	parts	may	

adversely	affect	business	performance�	To	cope	with	these	risks,	

the	Group	works	to	quickly	acquire	relevant	data	and	minimize	risks	

as	much	as	possible	through	the	decentralization	and	diversification	

of	its	operations�

Risks from Currency Exchange Rates

As	the	Group	seeks	aggressive	expansion	internationally,	it	hedges	

against	risks	from	currency	exchange	contracts	by	dispersing	ac-

count	settlements	between	order,	sales,	and	other	accounting	

periods�	However,	major	near-term	volatility	in	exchange	rates	may	

negatively	affect	business	performance�

Risks from Interest Rate Volatility

Increases	in	interest	rates	that	raise	interest	payments	may	adversely	

affect	the	Group’s	performance�	To	cope	with	this	risk,	the	Group	

steadily	works	to	reduce	interest-bearing	debt	and	adjusts	the	long-

term	portion	of	its	loan	balance	to	appropriate	levels�

Note:		The	risks	outlined	above	are	not	representative	of	all	of	the	potential	
risks	faced	by	the	Group�	The	countermeasures	described	will	not	
necessarily	reduce	risk�
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	 	 	 Thousands	of	
	 	 	 ����	�ollars	
	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 �Note	1�

Assets	 2008	 2����	 2008

Current	assets:

	 	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents	  ¥ 17,745 ¥	 14,��18 $  177,110

	 	 Time	deposits	�Note	���	  256 52�� 2,555

	 	 Trade	notes	and	accounts	receivable	  42,901 48,�43 428,200

	 	 Inventories	�Note	5�	  25,218 24,��31 251,704

	 	 �eferred	tax	assets	�Note	���	  2,860 3,4���� 28,545

	 	 Other	current	assets	  1,940 1,���2 19,356

	 	 Allowance	for	doubtful	accounts	  (386) �2�5� (3,852)

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	current	assets	  90,534 �2,���1 903,618

Property,	plant	and	equipment,	at	cost	�Note	���:

	 	 Land	�Notes	1�	and	14�	  36,653 3��,535 365,836

	 	 Buildings	and	structures	�Note	14�	  46,265 43,55�� 461,770

	 	 Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	  69,468 ��8,��8 693,364

	 	 Tools,	furniture	and	fixtures	  15,931 1��,���3 159,004

	 	 Construction	in	progress	  2,951 4,8���� 29,459

	 	 �ubtotal	  171,268 1���,13� 1,709,433

	 	 Less	accumulated	depreciation	  (87,856) �8��,343� (876,891)

	 	 	 	 	 	 Property,	plant	and	equipment,	net	  83,412 81,����� 832,542

Investments	and	other	assets:

	 	 Investment	in	securities	�Notes	4	and	���	  19,671 28,851 196,335

	 	 Investments	in	unconsolidated	subsidiaries	and	affiliates	  1,361 1,��5�� 13,585

	 	 Long-term	loans	receivable	  103 121 1,031

	 	 �eferred	tax	assets	�Note	���	  1,558 1,��31 15,551

	 	 Other	assets	�Note	���	  5,853 5,8��� 58,421

	 	 Allowance	for	doubtful	accounts	  (175) �145� (1,754)

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	investments	and	other	assets	  28,371 3��,�83 283,169

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	assets	  ¥202,317 ¥212,��4� $2,019,329

�ee	accompanying	notes	to	consolidated	financial	statements�

Consolidated Balance Sheets

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
March	31,	2��8	and	2����
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	 	 	 Thousands	of	
	 	 	 ����	�ollars	
	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 �Note	1�

Liabilities and Net Assets	 2008	 2����	 2008

Current	liabilities:

	 	 �hort-term	loans	�Note	���	  ¥  8,221	 ¥	 	 8,����� $   82,057

	 	 Current	portion	of	long-term	debt	�Note	���	  2,460 2,411 24,553

	 	 Trade	notes	and	accounts	payable	  26,758 3�,45�� 267,069

	 	 Accrued	income	taxes	  3,182 4,31� 31,761

	 	 Accrued	bonuses	to	employees	 	 2,704	 2,����5	 26,991

	 	 Accrued	expenses	  4,790 4,54�� 47,813

	 	 Other	current	liabilities	�Note	���	  5,844 5,��21 58,319

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	current	liabilities	  53,959 58,1��� 538,563

Long-term	liabilities:

	 	 Long-term	debt	�Note	���	  28,633 31,825 285,791

	 	 Accrued	retirement	benefits	to	employees	�Note	8�	  10,167 1�,215 101,480

	 	 Accrued	retirement	benefits	to	directors	and	corporate	auditors	  534 4���� 5,332

	 	 �eferred	tax	liabilities	�Note	���	  10,998 14,2�3 109,769

	 	 �eferred	tax	liabilities	on	land	revaluation	�Note	1��	  6,773 ��,����3 67,605

	 	 Other	long-term	liabilities	�Note	���	  3,750 4,�83 37,419

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	long-term	liabilities	  60,855 ��8,4��5 607,396

Contingent	liabilities	�Note	��

Net	assets:

	 �hareholders’	equity	�Notes	11	and	12�:

	 	 Common	stock:

	 	 	 Authorized	–	2��,���,���	shares	in	2��8	and	2����

	 	 	 	 	 	Issued	–	1�1,4���,����	shares	in	2��8	and	2����	 	 17,077	 1��,����� 170,443

	 	 Capital	surplus	 	 12,657	 12,��5��  126,334

	 	 Retained	earnings	�Notes	12	and	2��	 	 60,318	 51,2��� 602,033

	 	 Treasury	stock,	at	cost:

	 	 	 5,32�,�14	shares	in	2��8	and	3,�14,�����	shares	in	2����	 	 (2,528)	 �1,451� (25,234) 

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	shareholders’	equity	 	 87,524	 ���,5��1  873,576 

	 Valuation	and	translation	adjustments:

	 	 Net	unrealized	holding	gain	on	securities	�Note	4�	 	 7,339 	 13,4��3	 73,257

	 	 Net	unrealized	deferred	gain	�loss�	on	derivative	instruments	 	 268	 ���� 2,680 

	 	 Net	unrealized	loss	on	land	revaluation	�Note	1��	 	 (12,047)	 �12,�4��� (120,246) 

	 	 Translation	adjustments	 	 (1,479)	 14��	  (14,764)

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	valuation	and	translation	adjustments	 	 (5,919)	 1,4��3	 (59,073) 

	 	 Minority	interests	 	 5,898	 5,135	 58,867 

Total	net	assets	 	 87,503	 8��,1��� 873,370 

	 	 	 	 	 	 Total	liabilities	and	net	assets	  ¥202,317 ¥212,��4� $2,019,329

3�



Consolidated Statements of Income

	 	 	 Thousands	of	
	 	 	 ����	�ollars	
	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 �Note	1�

	 2008	 2008	 2����	 2008

Net	sales	�Note	1��	  ¥167,203	 ¥155,��4�� $1,668,858

Cost	of	sales	�Notes	13	and	1��	  117,493 112,15� 1,172,699

	 	 	 	 	 Gross	profit	  49,710 43,588 496,159

�elling,	general	and	administrative	expenses	�Notes	13	and	1��	  29,905 2��,58� 298,482

	 	 	 	 	 Operating	income	�Note	1��	  19,805 1��,��8 197,677

Other	income	�expenses�:

	 	 Interest	and	dividend	income	  518 4��� 5,170

	 	 Interest	expense	  (963) �1,�24� (9,615)

	 	 Equity	in	earnings	�loss�	of	affiliates	  90 �4� 897

	 	 Foreign	exchange	loss,	net	  (1,232) �551� (12,299)

	 	 Gain	on	sales	of	investments	in	securities,	net	�Note	4�	  2 3,3��1 18

	 	 Gain	on	sales	of	investments	in	an	affiliate	 	 149	 —	 1,490

	 	 Gain	on	amendment	to	retirement	benefit	plans,	net	�Note	8�	  114 124 1,134

	 	 Loss	on	impairment	of	fixed	assets	�Note	14�	  — �3���� —

	 	 Loss	on	sales	or	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment,	net	 	 (289)	 �181�	 (2,886)

	 	 Other,	net	  291 �2��1� 2,917

	 	 	 	 	 Income	before	income	taxes	and	minority	interests	  18,485 1��,��35 184,503

Income	taxes	�Note	���:

	 	 Current	  6,095 ��,��4 60,839

	 	 �eferred	  1,025 1,4��� 10,230

	 	 	 	  7,120 8,5�� 71,069

	 	 	 	 	 Income	before	minority	interests	  11,365 �,�45 113,434

Minority	interests	  (994) �5�4� (9,917)

	 	 	 	 	 Net	income	  ¥ 10,371 ¥	 	 8,541 $  103,517

�ee	accompanying	notes	to	consolidated	financial	statements�

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
For	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����
T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
For	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����
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	 	 Millions	of	Yen

	 	 	 	 	 	 Net	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 unrealized	 �nrealized	 Net	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Treasury	 holding	 loss	on	 unrealized	 	 	 	
	 	 Common	 Capital	 Retained	 stock,	 gain	on	 derivative	 loss	on	land	 Translation	 Minority	 Total	net	
	 	 stock	 surplus	 earnings	 at	cost	 securities	 instruments	 revaluation	 adjustments	 interests	 assets

Balance at March 31, 2006	 	 ¥1��,�����		 ¥12,��54		 ¥44,5��		 ¥�1,415�	 ¥1��,��4�		 ¥	 	 —	 ¥�12,�4���	 ¥	 	 �42��	 ¥4,1�5		 ¥81,2�3	

Cash	dividends	paid	 	 —	 —	 �1,��88�	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 �1,��88�

Bonuses	to	directors		
	 and	corporate	auditors	 	 —	 —	 �83�	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 �83�

Net	income	 	 —	 —	 8,541		 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 8,541	

Purchases	of	treasury	stock		 	 —	 —	 —	 �3��	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 �3��

�ales	of	treasury	stock		 	 —	 2	 —	 3	 —	 —	 —	 —	 —	 5

Other	net	changes	during	the	year	 	 —	 —	 —	 —	 �3,2�����	 ����	 —	 5��5		 1,�3�		 �1,������	

Balance at March 31, 2007	 	 ¥1��,�����	 ¥12,��5��		 ¥51,2���		 ¥�1,451�	 ¥13,4��3		 ¥	 ����	 ¥	�12,�4���	 ¥		 	 14��		 ¥5,135		 ¥8��,1���	

Cash	dividends	paid	  — — (1,308) — — — — — — (1,308)

Net	income	  — — 10,371 — — — — — — 10,371

Purchases	of	treasury	stock		  — — — (1,080) — — — — — (1,080)

�ales	of	treasury	stock	  — 1 — 3 — — — — — 4

�ecrease	in	retained	earnings		
	 resulting	from	initial	inclusion		
	 of	a	subsidiary	in	consolidation		  — — (24) — — — — — — (24)

Other	net	changes	during	the	year	  — — — — (6,134) 367 — (1,625) 763 (6,629)

Balance at March 31, 2008  ¥17,077 ¥12,657 ¥60,318 ¥(2,528) ¥  7,339 ¥268 ¥(12,047) ¥(1,479) ¥5,898 ¥87,503

	 	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars	�Note	1�

	 	 	 	 	 	 Net	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 unrealized	 �nrealized	 Net	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Treasury	 holding	 loss	on	 unrealized	 	 	 	
	 	 Common	 Capital	 Retained	 stock,	 gain	on	 derivative	 loss	on	land	 Translation	 Minority	 Total	net	
	 	 stock	 surplus	 earnings	 at	cost	 securities	 instruments	 revaluation	 adjustments	 interests	 assets

Balance at March 31, 2007	 	 $1���,443	 $12��,324	 $511,82�	 $�14,484�	 $134,4��1	 $	 ���2�	 $�12�,24���	 $		1,4��5	 $51,24�	 $8���,�5�

Cash	dividends	paid	 	 — — (13,057) — — — — — — (13,057)

Net	income	 	 — — 103,517 — — — — — — 103,517

Purchases	of	treasury	stock		 	 — — — (10,775) — — — — — (10,775)

�ales	of	treasury	stock		 	 — 10 — 25 — — — — — 35

�ecrease	in	retained	earnings		
	 resulting	from	initial	inclusion		
	 of	a	subsidiary	in	consolidation		 	 — — (247) — — — — — — (247)

Other	net	changes	during	the	year	 	 — — — — (61,214) 3,672 — (16,229) 7,618 (66,153)

Balance at March 31, 2008  $170,443 $126,334 $602,033 $(25,234) $  73,257 $2,680 $(120,246) $(14,764) $58,867 $873,370

�ee	accompanying	notes	to	consolidated	financial	statements�

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
For	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

	 	 	 Thousands	of	
	 	 	 ����	�ollars	
	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 �Note	1�

	 2008	 2008	 2����	 2008

Cash	flows	from	operating	activities:

	 	 Income	before	income	taxes	and	minority	interests	  ¥ 18,485	 ¥1��,��35 $ 184,503

	 	 Adjustments	for:

	 	 	 �epreciation	and	amortization	  7,302 5,�48 72,877

	 	 	 Loss	on	impairment	of	fixed	assets	  — 3��� —

	 	 	 Loss	on	sales	or	disposal	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	  262 154 2,615

	 	 	 Gain	on	sale	of	investment	in	an	affiliate	 	 (149)	 —	 (1,490)

	 	 	 Gain	on	sales	of	investments	in	securities,	net	  (2) �3,3��1� (18)

	 	 	 Increase	�decrease�	in	allowance	for	doubtful	accounts	  143 �31� 1,423

	 	 	 Increase	in	accrued	retirement	benefits	to	employees	  47 �3 465

	 	 	 �ecrease	in	obligation	on	transfer	to	defined	contribution	pension	plans		

	 	 	 	 included	in	other	current	liabilities	and	other	long-term	liabilities	  (904) �8�4� (9,019)

	 	 	 �ecrease	�increase�	in	trade	notes	and	accounts	receivable	  5,186 ���,228� 51,758

	 	 	 �Increase�	decrease	in	inventories	  (1,398) 231 (13,955)

	 	 	 ��ecrease�	increase	in	trade	notes	and	accounts	payable	  (2,469) 2,��55 (24,645)

	 	 	 Other	  1,628 1,35� 16,267

	 	 	 	 	 �ubtotal	  28,131 1��,�4� 280,781

	 	 Interest	and	dividends	received	  526 4���� 5,249

	 	 Interest	paid	  (975) �1,����� (9,732)

	 	 Income	taxes	paid	  (6,809) ���,312� (67,962)

	 	 	 	 	 Net	cash	provided	by	operating	activities	  20,873 1�,1��� 208,336

Cash	flows	from	investing	activities:

	 	 �ecrease	in	time	deposits	  270 54�� 2,695

	 	 Purchases	of	investments	in	securities	  (1,175) �12� (11,727)

	 	 Proceeds	from	sales	of	investments	in	securities	  5 3,8��1 45

	 	 Payment	for	additional	purchase	of	investment	in	a	consolidated	subsidiary	 	 (5)	 —	 (51)

	 	 Acquisition	of	a	newly	consolidated	subsidiary	 	 —	 �51���	 —

	 	 Proceeds	from	sale	of	investment	in	an	affiliate	 	 219	 —	 2,183

	 	 Increase	in	long-term	loans	receivable	  (63) ������ (625)

	 	 Collection	of	long-term	loans	receivable	  57 115 567

	 	 Purchases	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	  (11,343) �1�,2���� (113,211)

	 	 Proceeds	from	sales	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	  554 4��2 5,525

	 	 	 	 	 Net	cash	used	in	investing	activities	  (11,481) �5,8���� (114,599)

Cash	flows	from	financing	activities:

	 	 Increase	�decrease�	in	short-term	loans,	net	  28 �4�� 280

	 	 Proceeds	from	long-term	loans	  500 1�,233 4,991

	 	 Repayment	of	long-term	loans	  (2,996) ���,55��� (29,900)

	 	 Redemption	for	bonds	  (160) ������ (1,597)

	 	 Payments	on	installment	payables	  (349) �3�3� (3,479)

	 	 Cash	dividends	paid	  (1,308) �1,��88� (13,057)

	 	 Cash	dividends	paid	to	minority	interests	  (222) �2��� (2,213)

	 	 Purchases	of	treasury	stock	  (1,080) �3�� (10,775)

	 	 Proceeds	from	sales	of	treasury	stock	  4 5 35

	 	 	 	 	 Net	cash	used	in	financing	activities	  (5,583) ���4��� (55,715)

Effect	of	exchange	rate	changes	on	cash	and	cash	equivalents	  (766) 53 (7,653)

Net	increase	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	  3,043 3,��34 30,369

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	beginning	of	the	year	  14,618 1�,�84 145,904

Increase	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	resulting	from		

	 initial	inclusion	of	a	subsidiary	in	consolidation	  84 — 837

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	end	of	the	year	  ¥ 17,745	 ¥14,��18 $ 177,110

�ee	accompanying	notes	to	consolidated	financial	statements�

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
For	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIS OF PREPARAtION OF CONSOLIDAtED FINANCIAL StAtEMENtS

The	accompanying	consolidated	financial	statements	of	T��BAKIMOTO	
CHAIN	 CO�	 �the	 “Company”�	 and	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 are	
prepared	on	 the	basis	of	accounting	principles	generally	accepted	 in	
Japan,	 which	 are	 different	 in	 certain	 respects	 as	 to	 the	 application	
and	 disclosure	 requirements	 of	 International	 Financial	 Repor ting	
�tandards,	 and	 have	 been	 compiled	 from	 the	 consolidated	 financial	
statements	 prepared	 by	 the	 Company	 as	 required	 by	 the	 Financial	
Instruments	and	Exchange	Act	of	Japan�	In	addition,	the	notes	to	the	
consolidated	financial	statements	include	certain	information	which	is	
not	required	under	accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	Japan,	
but	is	presented	herein	as	additional	information�
	 In	 preparing	 the	 accompanying	 consolidated	 financial	 statements,	
certain	 reclassifications	 and	 rearrangements	 have	 been	made	 to	 the	
consolidated	financial	statements	issued	domestically	in	order	to	present	
them	in	a	format	which	is	more	familiar	to	readers	outside	Japan�
	 The	 translation	 of	 yen	 amounts	 into	 ����	 dollar	 amounts	 is	
included	solely	for	the	convenience	of	readers	outside	Japan	and	has	
been	made	at	¥1���1�	=	����$1���,	the	exchange	rate	prevailing	on	
March	 31,	 2��8�	 This	 translation	 should	 not	 be	 construed	 as	 a	
representation	 that	 yen	 can	 be	 converted	 into	 ����	 dollars	 at	 the	
above	or	any	other	rate�
	 Cer tain	 reclassifications	 of	 previously	 repor ted	 amounts	 have	
been	made	 to	conform	 the	consolidated	 financial	statements	 for	 the	
year	 ended	 March	 31,	 2����	 to	 the	 2��8	 presentation�	 These	
reclassifications	had	no	effect	on	consolidated	net	income�

2. SUMMARY OF SIgNIFICANt ACCOUNtINg POLICIES

�a�	Principles	of	consolidation
The	 accompanying	 consolidated	 financial	 statements	 include	 the	
accounts	of	the	Company	and	significant	subsidiaries	which	it	controls	
directly	 or	 indirectly�	 Companies	 over	 which	 the	 Company	 exercises	
significant	 influence	 in	 terms	of	 their	operating	and	 financial	policies	
have	 been	 included	 in	 the	 consolidated	 financial	 statements	 on	 an	
equity	 basis�	 All	 material	 intercompany	 balances	 and	 transactions	
have	been	eliminated	in	consolidation�
	 The	 assets	 and	 liabilities	 of	 the	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 are	
revalued	at	 fair	 value	by	 the	 full	 value	method	as	of	 their	 respective	
dates	 of	 acquisition�	 Goodwill	 or	 negative	 goodwill	 arising	 from	 the	
difference	between	the	cost	of	 investments	 in	such	subsidiaries	and	
the	equity	in	their	net	assets	at	their	respective	dates	of	acquisition	is	
amortized	over	a	period	of	five	years	on	a	straight-line	basis�
	 The	balance	sheet	dates	of	certain	consolidated	subsidiaries	are	
�ecember	 31	 and	 January	 31�	 Any	 significant	 differences	 in	 their	
intercompany	 accounts	 and	 transactions	 arising	 from	 intervening	
intercompany	transactions	during	the	periods	from	January	1	through	
March	 31	 and	 February	 1	 through	 March	 31	 have	 been	 adjusted,	 if	
necessary�
	 The	number	of	consolidated	subsidiaries	and	affiliates	accounted	
for	 by	 the	 equity	 method	 for	 the	 years	 ended	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	
2����	is	summarized	below:

	 2008	 2����

Consolidated	subsidiaries	 24	 23

Overseas	subsidiaries	 13	 12

Affiliates	 2	 2

Overseas	affiliates	 2	 2

�b�	Cash	and	cash	equivalents
Cash	 and	 cash	 equivalents	 consist	 of	 cash	 on	 hand,	 deposits	 with	
banks	withdrawable	on	demand,	and	short-term	investments	which	are	
readily	 conver tible	 to	 cash	 subject	 to	 an	 insignificant	 risk	 of	 any	
change	 in	 their	 value	 and	 which	 were	 purchased	 with	 an	 original	
maturity	of	three	months	or	less�

�c�	Allowance	for	doubtful	accounts
The	Company	and	 its	consolidated	subsidiaries	provide	an	allowance	
for	doubtful	accounts	at	an	amount	calculated	based	on	their	historical	
experience	 of	 bad	 debts	 on	 ordinary	 receivables	 plus	 an	 additional	
estimate	of	probable	specific	bad	debts	from	customers	experiencing	
financial	difficulties�

�d�	Investments	in	securities
Investments	 in	 securities	 are	 classified	 into	 two	 categories:	 trading	
securities	or	other	securities�	Trading	securities	are	stated	at	fair	value�	
Gain	 or	 loss,	 both	 realized	 and	 unrealized,	 is	 credited	 or	 charged	 to	
income�	Marketable	securities	classified	as	other	securities	are	carried	
at	fair	value	with	any	changes	in	unrealized	holding	gain	or	loss,	net	of	
the	applicable	income	taxes,	reported	as	a	separate	component	of	net	
assets�	Cost	 of	 securities	 sold	 is	 determined	 by	 the	moving	 average	
method�	Non-marketable	 securities	 classified	 as	 other	 securities	 are	
carried	at	cost	determined	by	the	moving	average	method�

�e�	�erivatives
�erivatives	are	stated	at	fair	value�
	 Gain	or	 loss	on	derivatives	designated	as	hedging	instruments	is	
deferred	 until	 the	 loss	 or	 gain	 on	 the	 underlying	 hedged	 items	 is	
recognized�	 Interest-rate	 swaps	 which	 meet	 certain	 conditions	 are	
accounted	for	as	if	the	interest	rates	applied	to	the	interest-rate	swaps	
had	originally	applied	to	the	underlying	debt�	Receivables	and	payables	
hedged	 by	 forward	 foreign	 exchange	 contracts	 which	 meet	 certain	
conditions	are	translated	at	the	corresponding	contract	rates�

�f�	Inventories
Inventories	 except	 for	 those	 of	 cer tain	 overseas	 subsidiaries	 are	
principally	 stated	at	 cost	 determined	by	 the	 first-in,	 first-out	method,	
the	 individual	 identification	 method,	 or	 the	 moving	 average	 cost	
method�	 Those	 of	 certain	 overseas	 subsidiaries	 are	 stated	 at	 the	
lower	of	cost	or	market�

�g�	Property,	plant	and	equipment
Property,	plant	and	equipment	are	stated	at	cost�	�epreciation	is	calculated	
by	 the	declining-balance	method	over	 the	estimated	useful	 lives	of	 the	
respective	assets�	�epreciation	of	buildings,	except	for	structures	attached	
to	the	buildings,	is	calculated	by	the	straight-line	method�
	 The	principal	estimated	useful	lives	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Buildings	and	structures	 3	to	5�	years
	 	 Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	 4	to	13	years

�h�	Leases
Finance	 leases	 other	 than	 those	 which	 transfer	 ownership	 of	 the	
leased	property	to	the	lessees	are	accounted	for	as	operating	leases�

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	and	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries	
March	31,	2��8
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�i�	Income	taxes	
�eferred	 income	 taxes	 have	 been	 recognized	 with	 respect	 to	 the	
dif ferences	 between	 financial	 repor ting	 and	 the	 tax	 bases	 of	 the	
assets	and	liabilities�	�eferred	taxes	are	measured	at	the	rates	which	
are	 expected	 to	 apply	 to	 the	 period	 when	 each	 asset	 or	 liability	 is	
realized	 based	 on	 the	 tax	 rates	 which	 have	 been	 enacted	 as	 of	 the	
balance	sheet	date	or	are	subsequently	enacted�

�j�	Accrued	bonuses	to	employees
Accrued	bonuses	to	employees	are	provided	based	on	the	estimated	
amount	 of	 bonuses	 to	 be	 paid	 to	 employees	 which	 are	 charged	 to	
income	in	the	current	year�

�k�	Accrued	retirement	benefits	to	employees
Accrued	 retirement	 benefits	 to	 employees	 are	 provided	 at	 the	
retirement	 benefit	 obligation	 less	 the	 fair	 value	 of	 the	 pension	 plan	
assets,	 as	 adjusted	 for	 net	 unrecognized	 actuarial	 gain	 or	 loss�	 The	
retirement	 benefit	 obligation	 is	 attributed	 to	 each	 period	 by	 the	
straight-line	method	over	the	estimated	remaining	years	of	service	of	
the	eligible	employees�
	 Prior	service	cost	 is	credited	or	charged	to	 income	in	the	year	 in	
which	the	gain	or	loss	is	recognized�
	 Actuarial	gain	or	loss	is	amortized	commencing	the	year	following	
the	 year	 in	 which	 the	 gain	 or	 loss	 is	 recognized	 by	 the	 straight-line	
method	 over	 a	 period	 which	 is	 shorter	 than	 the	 average	 estimated	
remaining	years	of	service	of	the	eligible	employees	�1�	years��

�l�	Accrued	retirement	benefits	to	directors	and	corporate	auditors
�irectors	 and	 corporate	 auditors	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 domestic	
consolidated	 subsidiaries	 are	 entitled	 to	 lump-sum	 payments	 under	
unfunded	 retirement	 benefit	 plans�	 The	 provision	 for	 retirement	
benefits	 to	 directors	 and	 corporate	 auditors	 has	 been	 made	 at	 an	
estimated	amount	based	on	the	internal	regulations�

�m�	Revenue	recognition
The	 Company	 and	 its	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 recognize	 revenue	
from,	 and	 the	 related	 costs	 of,	 long-term	 construction	 contracts	 by	
applying	 the	 completed-contract	 method,	 except	 for	 the	 Materials	
handling	systems	business	 in	certain	overseas	subsidiaries	 to	which	
the	percentage-of-completion	method	is	applied�

�n�	Research	and	development	costs	and	computer	software
Research	 and	 development	 costs	 are	 charged	 to	 income	 when	
incurred�
	 Expenditures	relating	to	computer	software	developed	for	internal	
use	 are	 charged	 to	 income	 when	 incurred,	 except	 if	 the	 software	 is	
expected	 to	 contribute	 to	 the	 generation	 of	 future	 income	 or	 cost	
savings�	 �uch	 expenditures	 are	 capitalized	 as	 assets	 and	 are	
amortized	by	the	straight-line	method	over	their	estimated	useful	lives	
�5	years��

�o�	Foreign	currency	translation
Monetary	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	currencies	are	
translated	 into	yen	at	 the	 rates	of	exchange	 in	effect	at	 the	balance	
sheet	 date�	 Revenues	 and	 expenses	 are	 translated	 at	 the	 rates	 of	
exchange	prevailing	when	the	transactions	were	made�
	 The	 assets,	 liabilities,	 and	 minority	 interests	 of	 overseas	
subsidiaries	 and	 affiliates	 are	 translated	 into	 yen	 at	 the	 exchange	
rates	in	effect	at	the	balance	sheet	date,	and	the	components	of	net	
assets	 excluding	minority	 interests	 are	 translated	at	 their	 respective	
historical	rates�	Revenues	and	expenses	are	translated	at	the	average	
rates	 of	 exchange	 for	 the	 respective	 years�	 �ifferences	 arising	 from	
translation	 are	 reflected	 in	 net	 assets	 �presented	 as	 “Translation	
adjustments”	 and	 “Minority	 interests”�	 in	 the	 accompanying	
consolidated	balance	sheets�

�p�	�istribution	of	retained	earnings
�nder	 the	 Corporation	 Law	 of	 Japan	 �the	 “Law”�,	 the	 distribution	 of	
retained	earnings	with	respect	to	a	given	financial	period	 is	made	by	
resolution	of	the	shareholders	at	a	general	meeting	held	subsequent	
to	the	close	of	the	financial	period	and	the	accounts	for	that	period	do	
not,	therefore,	reflect	such	distributions�	�Refer	to	Note	2���

3. CHANgES IN MEtHOD OF ACCOUNtINg

Effective	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	 2��8,	 the	 Company	 and	 its	
domestic	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 have	 changed	 their	 method	 of	
accounting	for	depreciation	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	acquired	
on	 or	 after	 April	 1,	 2�����	 This	 change	 was	 made	 based	 on	 an	
amendment	 to	 the	 Corporation	 Tax	 Law�	 As	 a	 result	 of	 this	 change,	
operating	 income	 and	 income	 before	 income	 taxes	 and	 minority	
interests	 decreased	 by	 ¥223	 million	 �$2,222	 thousand�	 and	 ¥228	
million	�$2,2���	thousand�,	respectively,	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	
2��8	 from	 the	 corresponding	 amounts	 which	 would	 have	 been	
recorded	under	 the	method	applied	 in	 the	previous	 year�	 The	 impact	
on	segment	information	is	outlined	in	Note	1��
	 In	addition,	effective	the	year	ended	March	31,	2��8,	depreciation	
expense	 for	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment	 acquired	 on	 or	 before	
March	 31,	 2����	 is	 computed	 based	 on	 the	 salvage	 value	 of	 5%	 of	
acquisition	 cost,	 and	 the	 amount	 between	 the	 salvage	 value	 �5%	 of	
acquisition	cost�	and	memorandum	value	is	depreciated	from	the	year	
following	the	year	in	which	the	book	value	of	an	asset	reaches	5%	of	
its	 acquisition	 cost	 by	 the	 straight-line	 method	 over	 a	 period	 of	 5	
years�	 This	 change	 was	 made	 based	 on	 an	 amendment	 to	 the	
Corporation	Tax	Law�	As	a	result	of	this	change,	operating	income	and	
income	before	income	taxes	and	minority	interests	decreased	by	¥324	
million	 �$3,232	 thousand�	 and	 ¥335	 million	 �$3,33�	 thousand�,	
respectively,	 for	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	 2��8	 from	 the	
corresponding	 amounts	 which	 would	 have	 been	 recorded	 under	 the	
method	 applied	 in	 the	 previous	 year�	 The	 impact	 on	 segment	
information	is	outlined	in	Note	1��
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4. INVEStMENtS IN SECURItIES wItH DEtERMINABLE MARkEt VALUE

�a�		Investments	 in	 securities	 with	 determinable	 market	 value	 classified	 as	 other	 securities	 at	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����	 are	 summarized	
as	follows:

	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars	

 2008	 2����	 2008

	 Acquisition	 Carrying	 �nrealized	 Acquisition	 Carrying	 �nrealized	 Acquisition	 Carrying	 �nrealized	
	 costs	 value	 gain	�loss�	 costs	 value	 gain	�loss�	 costs	 value	 gain	�loss�

�ecurities	whose	carrying	value		

	 exceeds	their	acquisition	costs:

	 Equity	securities	 ¥6,672 ¥19,034 ¥12,362	 ¥5,848	 ¥28,384	 ¥22,53�� $66,594 $189,979 $123,385
	 Other	 29 32 3	 4�	 58	 � 290 318 28
	 	 �ubtotal	 6,701 19,066 12,365	 5,8���	 28,442	 22,545 66,884 190,297 123,413
�ecurities	whose	carrying	value		

	 does	not	exceed	their	acquisition	costs:

	 Equity	securities	 383 209 (174)	 3��	 33	 �3� 3,819 2,090 (1,729)
	 Other	 20 19 (1)	 —	 —	 — 200 189 (11)
	 	 �ubtotal	 403 228 (175)	 3��	 33	 �3� 4,019 2,279 (1,740)
	 	 	 	 Total	 ¥7,104 ¥19,294 ¥12,190	 ¥5,�33	 ¥28,4��5	 ¥22,542 $70,903 $192,576 $121,673

�b�	�ales	of	other	securities	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

�ales	 ¥ 5	 ¥3,��54	 $45
Gross	realized	gain	 2	 3,414	 18
Gross	realized	loss	 —	 �43�	 —

The	carrying	value	of	securities	without	determinable	market	value	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	is	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Other	securities:

	 �nlisted	equity	securities	 ¥377	 ¥3����	 $3,759

5. INVENtORIES
Inventories	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	consisted	of	the	following:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Finished	goods	 ¥11,582	 ¥11,3����	 $115,605
Raw	materials	 3,524	 3,1��5	 35,175
Work	in	process	 9,355	 �,35�	 93,374
�upplies	 757	 ��21	 7,550
	 	 ¥25,218	 ¥24,��31	 $251,704
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6. SHORt-tERM LOANS AND LONg-tERM DEBt

�hort-term	loans	consisted	principally	of	loans	from	banks	and	insurance	companies	at	a	weighted	average	interest	rate	of	2��%	at	March	31,	
2��8	and	2�����
	 Long-term	debt	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	consisted	of	the	following:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Loans,	principally	from	banks	and	insurance	companies,		

	 due	through	2�14	at	an	average	annual	interest	rate	of	2�3%:

	 �ecured	 ¥ 6,948	 ¥	 �,1�8	 $ 69,347
	 �nsecured	 17,055	 1��,��88	 170,232
��44%	unsecured	bonds	due	2����	 —	 1��	 —
��41%	secured	bonds	due	2��8	 10	 3�	 100
��88%	secured	bonds	due	2���	 30	 5�	 299
��5��%	secured	bonds	due	2�1�	 50	 ���	 499
��83%	unsecured	bonds	due	2�1�	 7,000	 ��,���	 69,867
	 	 31,093	 34,23��	 310,344
Less	current	portion	 2,460	 2,411	 24,553
	 Total	 ¥28,633	 ¥31,825	 $285,791

	 Other	interest-bearing	liabilities	included	in	other	current	liabilities	
and	other	 long-term	liabilities	represented	 installment	payables	at	an	
average	annual	interest	rate	of	3�2%	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2�����
	 The	aggregate	annual	maturities	of	 long-term	debt	subsequent	to	
March	31,	2��8	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
Year	ending	March	31,	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2���	 ¥	 2,4���	 $	 24,553

	 2�1�	 8,541	 85,24�

	 2�11	 �,133	 �1,15��

	 2�12	 ��,1���	 ���,�4�

	 2�13	 ��45	 ��,434

	 2�14	and	thereafter	 3,2���	 32,�11

Total	 ¥31,��3	 $31�,344

	 The	aggregate	annual	maturities	of	other	interest-bearing	liabilities	
subsequent	to	March	31,	2��8	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
Year	ending	March	31,	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2���	 ¥	 	33��	 $	 3,3��1

	 2�1�	 31�	 3,183

	 2�11	 32�	 3,288

	 2�12	 1���	 1,���1

Total	 ¥1,155	 $11,533

	 Assets	 pledged	 as	 collateral	 for	 short-term	 bank	 loans	 of	 ¥1�8	
million	 �$1,�����	 thousand�,	 the	 current	 portion	 of	 long-term	 debt	 of	
¥2,3�8	 million	 �$23,�35	 thousand�,	 the	 current	 portion	 of	 secured	
bonds	of	¥5�	million	�$4��	thousand�	and	long-term	debt	of	¥4,��8�	
million	�$4��,��11	thousand�	at	March	31,	2��8	were	composed	of	the	
following:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008 2008

Land	 ¥30,394 $303,360
Buildings	and	structures	 14,582 145,548
Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	 9,657 96,387
Tools,	furniture	and	fixtures	 938 9,364
Construction	in	progress	 6 57
Time	deposits	 40 399
Investments	in	securities	 82 822
Other	assets	 2 20
	 	 ¥55,701 $555,957

	 The	Company	has	concluded	line-of-credit	agreements	with	certain	
banks	to	achieve	efficient	financing�	The	status	of	these	lines	of	credit	
at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	was	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Lines	of	credit	 ¥15,000	 ¥15,���	 $149,715
Credit	utilized	 2,000	 2,���	 19,962
Available	credit	 ¥13,000	 ¥13,���	 $129,753
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7. INCOME tAxES

Income	taxes	applicable	to	the	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	comprise	corporation,	inhabitants’	and	enterprise	taxes	which,	in	the	
aggregate,	resulted	in	a	statutory	tax	rate	of	approximately	4����%	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2�����
	 A	reconciliation	of	the	statutory	and	effective	tax	rates	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	is	summarized	as	follows:

 2008 2����

�tatutory	tax	rate	 40.6%	 4����%

Permanent	differences	such	as	entertainment	expenses	 0.6	 ��4

�ndistributed	earnings	of	overseas	subsidiaries	 —	 ���1

Per	capita	portion	of	inhabitants’	taxes	 0.3	 —

Valuation	allowance	for	deferred	tax	assets	 —	 1���

Equity	in	earnings	of	affiliates	 (0.2)	 —

Permanently	non-taxable	dividends	received	 (0.4)	 —

Tax	credits	such	as	research	and	development	costs	and	other	 (0.5)	 —

Other	 (1.9)	 ���1�

Effective	tax	rates	 38.5%	 48���%

	 The	significant	components	of	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	of	the	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	at	March	31,	2��8	and	
2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

�eferred	tax	assets:

	 Accrued	retirement	benefits	 ¥  4,011	 ¥	 	 4,1�2	 $  40,031
	 Obligation	on	transfer	to	defined	contribution	pension	plans	 1,193	 1,5���	 11,903
	 Accrued	bonuses	 1,112	 1,�81	 11,097
	 �nrealized	losses	on	inventories,	net	 579	 524	 5,778
	 Accrued	enterprise	taxes	 222	 31�	 2,217
	 Other	 1,615	 2,353	 16,127
Gross	deferred	tax	assets	 8,732	 �,�3�	 87,153
	 Less:	valuation	allowance	 (666)	 �8��1�	 (6,642)
Total	deferred	tax	assets	 8,066	 �,���8	 80,511

�eferred	tax	liabilities:

	 �eferred	gain	on	replacement	of	property	 (5,377)	 �5,3�1�	 (53,667)
	 �ndistributed	earnings	of	overseas	subsidiaries	 (2,347)	 �1,����4�	 (23,427)
	 Net	unrealized	gain	on	revaluation	of	assets	and	liabilities	of	subsidiaries	 (757)	 ���5���	 (7,555)
	 �nrealized	holding	gain	on	securities	 (4,824)	 ��,�����	 (48,148)
	 Other	 (1,341)	 �1,3�����	 (13,387)
Total	deferred	tax	liabilities	 (14,646)	 �18,184�	 (146,184)
Net	deferred	tax	liabilities	 ¥ (6,580)	 ¥	 ��,1����	 $ (65,673)
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8. REtIREMENt BENEFItS

The	Company	and	its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	have	defined	
benefit	 pension	 plans,	 i�e�,	 lump-sum	 payment	 plans,	 defined	
contribution	 pension	 plans	 and	 advance	 payment	 schemes	 for	
retirement	 benefits�	 In	 addition	 to	 the	 retirement	 benefit	 plans	
described	 above,	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 domestic	 subsidiaries	 pay	
additional	 retirement	 benefits	 under	 cer tain	 conditions�	 Cer tain	
overseas	subsidiaries	also	have	defined	benefit	pension	plans�	
	 The	 following	 table	 sets	 forth	 the	 funded	 and	 accrued	 status	 of	
the	 plans	 and	 the	 amounts	 recognized	 in	 the	 accompanying	
consolidated	 balance	 sheets	 at	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����	 for	
the	Company’s	 and	 the	 consolidated	 subsidiaries’	 defined	 benefit	
pension	plans:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Retirement	benefit	obligation		 ¥(13,215)	 ¥�13,4�1�	 $(131,898)
Plan	assets	at	fair	value	 1,756	 2,312	 17,526
�nfunded	retirement		

	 benefit	obligation		 (11,459)	 �11,1����	 (114,372)
�nrecognized	actuarial	loss	 1,298	 ���4	 12,955
Net	amount	on	consolidated		

	 balance	sheet	 (10,161)	 �1�,215�	 (101,417)
Prepaid	pension	cost	 6	 —	 63
Accrued	retirement	benefits	 ¥(10,167)	 ¥�1�,215�	 $(101,480)

	 As	 permitted	 under	 the	 accounting	 standard	 for	 retirement	
benefits,	 cer tain	 domestic	 subsidiaries	 calculate	 their	 retirement	
benefit	obligation	for	their	employees	by	simplified	methods�
	 Certain	overseas	consolidated	subsidiaries	amended	a	portion	of	
its	 defined	 benefit	 pension	 plan	 and	 adopted	 a	 defined	 contribution	
pension	 plan	 at	 January	 1,	 2��8	 and	 2�����	 The	 effects	 of	 these	
amendments	 to	 the	 retirement	 benefit	 plans	 as	 of	 March	 31,	 2��8	
and	2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

�ecrease	in	retirement		

	 benefit	obligation	 ¥114	 ¥	�58	 $1,134
�ecrease	in	plan	assets	 —	 �834�	 —
Gain	on	amendments	to		

	 retirement	benefit	plans,	net	 ¥114	 ¥	124	 $1,134

	 The	 components	 of	 retirement	 benefit	 expenses	 for	 the	 years	
ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	outlined	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

�ervice	cost	 ¥  742	 ¥	 	����3	 $ 7,398
Interest	cost	 233	 282	 2,329
Expected	return	on	plan	assets	 (56)	 ������	 (556)
Gain	on	amendments	to	retirement		

	 benefit	plans,	net	 (114)	 �124�	 (1,134)
Contributions	to	defined		

	 contribution	pension	plans	 511	 515	 5,103
Amortization	of	unrecognized		

	 actuarial	loss	 229	 214	 2,281
Amortization	of	prior	service	cost	 117	 —	 1,171
Retirement	benefit	expenses	 ¥1,662	 ¥1,483	 $16,592

	 The	 assumptions	 used	 in	 accounting	 for	 the	 defined	 benefit	
pension	 plans	 for	 the	 years	 ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	were	
as	follows:

	 2008	 2����

�iscount	rate	 Principally	2��%	 Principally	2��%

Expected	rate	of	return	on	plan	assets	 Principally	2�5%	 Principally	2�5%

9. CONtINgENt LIABILItIES

At	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����,	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 consolidated	
subsidiaries	were	contingently	liable	for	the	following	items:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Notes	receivable	discounted	 ¥173	 ¥1�3	 $1,731
Guarantees	of	home	mortgage		

	 loans	by	employees	 260	 31�	 2,591
Guarantees	of	loans	made	by	affiliates	 57	 2����	 571
Total	 ¥490	 ¥�����	 $4,893

10. NEt UNREALIzED LOSS ON LAND REVALUAtION

Effective	 March	 31,	 2��1,	 the	 Company	 revalued	 its	 land	 held	 for	
business	 use	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 “Law	 on	 Land	 Revaluation�”	
�ifferences	 on	 land	 revaluation	 have	 been	 accounted	 for	 as	 “Net	
unrealized	 loss	 on	 land	 revaluation”	 under	 net	 assets	 at	 the	 net	
amount	of	the	relevant	tax	effect�	The	method	followed	in	determining	
the	 land	 revaluation	 was	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 “Enforcement	 Act	
Concerning	 Land	 Revaluation�”	 The	 carr ying	 value	 of	 this	 land	
exceeded	 its	 corresponding	 fair	 value	 by	 ¥�,5��	 million	 �$�4,82�	
thousand�	 and	 ¥1�,5��	 million	 at	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����,	
respectively�

11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EqUItY

The	Law	provides	that	an	amount	equal	 to	1�%	of	 the	amount	 to	be	
disbursed	 as	 distributions	 of	 capital	 surplus	 �other	 than	 the	 capital	
reserve�	 and	 retained	 earnings	 �other	 than	 the	 legal	 reserve�	 be	
transferred	to	the	capital	 reserve	and	the	 legal	reserve,	respectively,	
until	the	sum	of	the	capital	reserve	and	the	legal	reserve	equals	25%	
of	 the	 capital	 sock	 account�	 �uch	 distributions	 can	 be	 made	 at	 any	
time	by	resolution	of	the	shareholders	or	by	the	Board	of	�irectors	if	
certain	conditions	are	met�	The	Company’s	legal	reserve	amounted	to	
¥3,3����	million	�$33,���4	thousand�	and	¥3,3����	million	at	March	31,	
2��8	and	2����,	respectively�
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�b�	Matters	related	to	dividends
1�		Pursuant	 to	 a	 resolution	 approved	 at	 the	 annual	 general	

shareholders’	meeting	held	on	 June	28,	2����,	 the	Company	paid	
the	following	cash	dividends	on	June	2�,	2����	to	shareholders	of	
common	stock	of	record	at	March	31,	2����:

	 March	31,	2����

Cash	dividends	 ¥��4�	million

2�		Pursuant	 to	 a	 resolution	 approved	 at	 a	 meeting	 of	 the	 Board	 of	
�irectors	 held	 on	 �eptember	 3�,	 2����,	 the	 Company	 paid	 the	
following	cash	dividends	on	�ecember	1�,	2����	to	shareholders	of	
common	stock	of	record	at	�eptember	3�,	2����:

	 �eptember	3�,	2����

Cash	dividends	 ¥558	million

13. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENt COStS

Research	 and	 development	 costs	 included	 in	 manufacturing	 costs,	
and	selling,	general	and	administrative	expenses	for	the	years	ended	
March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����	 amounted	 to	 ¥3,��81	 million	 �$3��,��44	
thousand�	and	¥3,5�5	million,	respectively�

14. LOSS ON IMPAIRMENt OF FIxED ASSEtS

The	 Company	 and	 its	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 group	 their	 fixed	
assets	 relating	 to	 Power	 transmission	 products,	 Materials	 handling	
systems	 and	 other	 businesses	 primarily	 at	 each	 business	 which	
manages	 receipts	 and	 payments	 separately�	 They	 also	 group	 their	
fixed	assets	which	they	have	determined	to	dispose	of	and	idle	assets	
primarily	at	each	asset�

	 For	 the	 year	 under	 review	 it	 was	 determined	 that	 none	 of	 these	
assets	were	impaired	and,	thus,	no	related	loss	was	recorded	in	the	
accompanying	 consolidated	 statement	 of	 income	 for	 the	 year	 ended	
March	 31,	 2��8�	 The	 Company	 and	 its	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	
recorded	a	related	loss	on	impairment	of	fixed	assets	of	¥3���	million	
for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2�����

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2����

Buildings	and	structures	 ¥	 ��

Land	 21��

	 Total	 ¥3���

	 The	carrying	amounts	of	the	above	fixed	assets	were	written	down	
to	their	respective	recoverable	amounts	and	were	measured	using	their	
respective	net	selling	prices	principally	based	on	appraisal	valuations�

15.  SUPPLEMENtAL INFORMAtION ON tHE CONSOLIDAtED 

StAtEMENtS OF CASH FLOwS

In	April	2����,	 the	Company	acquired	51%	of	 the	shares	of	T��BAKI	
YAMAKY�	CHAIN	Co�,	Ltd�	whose	assets	and	liabilities,	and	the	related	
cost	 of	 acquired	 shares	 and	 payment	 for	 acquisition	 of	 shares,	 are	
summarized	as	follows:

	 Millions	of	Yen

Current	assets	 ¥	2,��4

Fixed	assets	 2,43��

Goodwill	 38

Current	liabilities	 �2,��18�

Non-current	liabilities	 �1,285�

Minority	interests	 ����4�

	 Cost	of	acquired	shares	 ����1

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 �255�

	 Payment	for	acquisition	of	shares	 ¥	 	 �51���

12. NOtE tO tHE CONSOLIDAtED StAtEMENtS OF CHANgES IN NEt ASSEtS

�a�	 Type	and	number	of	issued	shares	of	common	stock	and	treasury	stock
Movements	in	issued	shares	of	common	stock	and	treasury	stock	during	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 Number	of	�hares

	 2008

	 March	31,	2����	 Increase Decrease	 March 31, 2008

Issued	shares	of	common	stock	 1�1,4���,����	 — —	 191,406,969
Treasury	stock	 3,�14,�����	 1,420,497 5,343	 5,329,914

Notes:	1�		Increase	in	the	number	of	shares	of	treasury	stock	was	due	to	repurchases	of	stock	in	accordance	with	a	corporate	resolution	�1,3��1,����	and	purchases	of	fractional	shares	of		
less-than-one-unit	�5�,4�����	

	 	 2�	�ecrease	in	the	number	of	shares	of	treasury	stock	was	due	to	sales	of	fractional	shares	of	less-than-one-unit�

	
	 Number	of	�hares

	 2����

	 March	31,	2����	 Increase	 �ecrease	 March	31,	2����

Issued	shares	of	common	stock	 1�1,4���,����	 —	 —	 1�1,4���,����

Treasury	stock	 3,8��5,828	 5��,188	 ��,25��	 3,�14,�����

Notes:	 1�	Increase	in	the	number	of	shares	of	treasury	stock	was	due	to	purchases	of	fractional	shares	of		less-than-one-unit	�5��,188��
	 	 2�	�ecrease	in	the	number	of	shares	of	treasury	stock	was	due	to	sales	of	fractional	shares	of	less-than-one-unit�

4�



16. LEASES

The	following	pro forma	amounts	represent	the	acquisition	cost,	accumulated	depreciation	and	net	book	value	of	the	leased	property	as	of	March	
31,	2��8	and	2����,	which	would	have	been	reflected	in	the	accompanying	consolidated	balance	sheets	if	finance	lease	accounting	had	been	
applied	to	the	finance	leases	under	which	the	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	are	lessees	and	which	are	currently	accounted	for	as	
operating	leases:

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2008

	 Acquisition	cost	 Accumulated	depreciation	 Net	book	value

Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	 ¥  318 ¥151 ¥167
Tools,	furniture	and	fixtures	 748 356 392
Other	assets	 434 240 194
Total	 ¥1,500 ¥747 ¥753

	 Millions	of	Yen

 2����

	 Acquisition	cost	 Accumulated	depreciation	 Net	book	value

Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	 ¥	 	2���	 ¥132	 ¥1��4

Tools,	furniture	and	fixtures	 ����5	 38��	 3��8

Other	assets	 4��	 221	 1���

Total	 ¥1,4��1	 ¥��4�	 ¥��21

	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars

	 2008

	 Acquisition	cost	 Accumulated	depreciation	 Net	book	value

Machinery,	equipment	and	vehicles	 $ 3,176 $1,513 $1,663
Tools,	furniture	and	fixtures	 7,469 3,555 3,914
Other	assets	 4,327 2,392 1,935
Total	 $14,972 $7,460 $7,512

	 Lease	 payments	 related	 to	 finance	 leases	 accounted	 for	 as	
operating	leases	and	depreciation	of	the	leased	assets	calculated	by	
the	 straight-line	method	 over	 the	 respective	 lease	 terms	which	 have	
not	 been	 reflected	 in	 the	 accompanying	 consolidated	 statements	 of	
income	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	summarized	
as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Lease	payments	 ¥311	 ¥31�	 $3,108
�epreciation	 311	 31�	 3,108

	 Future	minimum	lease	payments	subsequent	to	March	31,	2��8	
under	finance	leases	other	than	those	which	transfer	the	ownership	of	
the	leased	property	to	the	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	
are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
Year	ending	March	31,	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2���	 ¥25��	 $2,55�

	 2�1�	and	thereafter	 4���	 4,���2

	 	 ¥��53	 $��,512

	 The	 acquisition	 cost	 and	 future	 minimum	 lease	 payments	 under	
finance	 leases	 presented	 in	 the	 above	 tables	 include	 the	 imputed	
interest	expense�

	 Future	minimum	lease	payments	subsequent	to	March	31,	2��8	
for	non-cancelable	operating	leases	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of	
Year	ending	March	31,	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2���	 ¥	 ��2	 $	 	��23

	 2�1�	and	thereafter	 ���	 ���4

	 	 ¥142	 $1,41��
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	 The	notional	amounts	of	forward	foreign	exchange	contracts	and	interest-rate	swap	agreements,	the	estimated	fair	value	of	the	outstanding	
derivatives	positions	and	unrealized	gain	or	loss	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Millions	of	Yen	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars	

 2008	 2����	 2008

	 Notional		 Estimated	 �nrealized	 Notional		 Estimated	 �nrealized	 Notional		 Estimated	 �nrealized	
	 amount	 	fair	value	 gain	�loss�	 amount	 	fair	value	 gain	�loss�	 amount	 	fair	value	 gain	�loss�

Forward	foreign	exchange	contracts:

	 �ell:

	 	 ����	dollars	 ¥3,668 ¥3,398 ¥270	 ¥2,1��4	 ¥2,18��	 ¥�23�	 $36,606 $33,914 $2,692
	 	 Euros		 666 694 (28)	 —	 —	 —	 6,653 6,931 (278)
	 	 Canadian	dollars	 205 199 6	 142	 142	 �	 2,047 1,984 63
	 	 Australian	dollars	 114 109 5	 ��5	 ����	 �2�	 1,135 1,086 49
	 	 Pounds	sterling	 — — —	 15	 15	 ���	 — — —
	 Buy:

	 	 Japanese	yen	 479 484 5	 1,23�	 1,2��	 �3��	 4,783 4,835 52
	 	 ����	dollars	 — — —	 1��	 1��	 ���	 — — —

Interest-rate	swap	agreements:

	 	 Floating	paid/fixed	received	 150 (5) (5)	 15�	 �1��	 �1��	 1,497 (46) (46)
	 Total	 	  ¥253	 	 	 ¥���5�	 	 	 $2,532

Notes:	 1�	Estimated	fair	value	is	based	on	the	prices	quoted	by	various	financial	institutions�
	 	 2�	�erivatives	positions	to	which	hedge	accounting	has	been	applied	have	been	excluded	from	the	above	table�

18. AMOUNtS PER SHARE

Amounts	per	 share	at	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	and	 for	 the	 years	
then	ended	were	as	follows:

	 Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Net	assets	 ¥438.56	 ¥432�2�	 $4.38
Net	income	 55.70	 45�55	 0.56
Cash	dividends	 8.00	 �����	 0.08

	 The	amounts	per	share	of	net	assets	are	computed	based	on	the	
number	of	shares	of	common	stock	outstanding	at	each	year	end�
	 Net	 income	 per	 share	 is	 computed	 based	 on	 the	 net	 income	
available	 for	 distribution	 to	 shareholders	 of	 common	 stock	 and	 the	
weighted-average	 number	 of	 shares	 of	 common	 stock	 outstanding	
during	the	year�	
	 Cash	dividends	per	share	represent	the	cash	dividends	proposed	
by	 the	 Board	 of	 �irectors	 as	 applicable	 to	 the	 respective	 years	
together	with	the	interim	cash	dividends	paid�
	 �iluted	net	income	per	share	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	
and	 2����	 has	 not	 been	 presented	 because	 no	 potentially	 dilutive	
shares	of	common	stock	were	outstanding�

	 Information	used	in	the	calculation	of	basic	net	income	per	share	
is	summarized	as	follows:

	 	 Thousands	of		
	 Millions	of	Yen	 ����	�ollars

	 2008	 2����	 2008

Net	income	 ¥10,371	 ¥8,541	 $103,517
Net	income	not	available		

	 for	distribution	to		

	 shareholders	of	common	stock	 —	 —	 —
Net	income	on	which	basic		

	 net	income	per	share	is	calculated	 ¥10,371	 ¥8,541	 $103,517

	 Thousands	of	�hares

	 2008	 2����

Weighted-average	number	of	shares		

	 of	common	stock	on	which	basic		

	 net	income	per	share	is	calculated	 186,208	 18��,51�

17. DERIVAtIVES

The	Company	 and	 certain	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 utilize	 derivative	
financial	instruments	to	reduce	foreign	exchange	rate	and	interest-rate	
risk�	 The	 Company	 and	 cer tain	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 utilize	
forward	foreign	exchange	contracts	to	ensure	stable	profit	by	hedging	
the	 risk	of	exchange	 rate	 fluctuation	which	 impacts	 their	assets	and	
liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	currencies�	In	addition,	the	Company	
and	 certain	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 utilize	 interest-rate	 swaps	 to	
hedge	 the	 ef fect	 of	 any	 fluctuation	 in	 interest	 rates	 on	 their	
borrowings�	The	Company	and	these	consolidated	subsidiaries	do	not	
enter	into	derivatives	contracts	for	speculative	trading	purposes�
	 The	Company	and	certain	consolidated	subsidiaries	are	exposed	
to	 certain	 market	 risk	 arising	 from	 their	 forward	 foreign	 exchange	

contracts	and	 interest-rate	swap	agreements�	They	are	also	exposed	
to	 the	 risk	 of	 credit	 loss	 in	 the	 event	 of	 nonper formance	 by	 the	
counterpar ties	 with	 respect	 to	 such	 forward	 foreign	 exchange	
contracts	 and	 interest-rate	 swap	 agreements;	 however,	 they	 do	 not	
anticipate	nonperformance	by	any	of	 the	counterparties,	all	of	whom	
are	financial	institutions	with	high	credit	ratings�
	 Each	business	department	determines	the	appropriate	amount	of	
forward	 foreign	 exchange	 contracts	 within	 predetermined	 limits	 and	
the	financial	section	of	each	department	executes	and	manages	these	
positions�	In	addition,	the	Finance	�epartment	of	the	Company	enters	
into	and	manages	 interest-rate	swap	positions	as	an	 integral	part	of	
the	process	of	entering	into	loan	agreements�
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19. SEgMENt INFORMAtION

The	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	are	primarily	engaged	in	the	manufacture	and	sale	of	power	transmission	products	and	materials	
handling	systems�	The	Company	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	also	engage	in	certain	other	activities	such	as	building	maintenance,	insurance	
brokerage,	sales	of	health	care	equipment,	and	so	forth�

Business Segments
The	 business	 segments	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 for	 the	 years	 ended	 March	 31,	 2��8	 and	 2����	 are	 outlined	
as	follows:

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2008

	 Power		 Materials	 	 	 Eliminations	 	
	 transmission	 handling	 	 	 and	general	 	
	 products		 systems	 Other	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

I�	�ales	and	operating	income

	 	 �ales	to	third	parties	 ¥133,565 ¥33,078 ¥  560 ¥167,203 ¥     — ¥167,203
	 	 Intragroup	sales	and	transfers	 1,660 19 1,789 3,468 (3,468) —
	 	 Net	sales	 135,225 33,097 2,349 170,671 (3,468) 167,203
	 	 Operating	expenses	and	amortization	 115,796 29,146 2,108 147,050 348 147,398
	 	 Operating	income	 ¥ 19,429 ¥ 3,951 ¥  241 ¥ 23,621 ¥ (3,816) ¥ 19,805
II�		Total	assets,	depreciation	and		

	 amortization	and	capital	expenditures

	 	 Total	assets	 ¥129,010 ¥24,028 ¥2,931 ¥155,969 ¥46,348 ¥202,317
	 	 �epreciation	and	amortization	 6,584 194 6 6,784 518 7,302
	 	 Capital	expenditures	 9,457 280 7 9,744 481 10,225

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2����

	 Power		 Materials	 	 	 Eliminations	 	
	 transmission	 handling	 	 	 and	general	 	
	 products		 systems	 Other	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

I�	�ales	and	operating	income

	 	 �ales	to	third	parties	 ¥122,�81	 ¥32,1��2	 ¥	 	5�4	 ¥155,��4��	 ¥	 	 	 	 	—	 ¥155,��4��

	 	 Intragroup	sales	and	transfers	 1,5���	 14��	 1,�18	 3,��34	 �3,��34�	 —

	 	 Net	sales	 124,551	 32,318	 2,512	 15�,381	 �3,��34�	 155,��4��

	 	 Operating	expenses	 1���,184	 3�,42�	 2,284	 13�,8���	 �158�	 13�,��3�

	 	 Operating	income	 ¥	 1��,3����	 ¥	 1,88�	 ¥	 	228	 ¥	 1�,484	 ¥	�3,4�����	 ¥	 1��,��8

II�		Total	assets,	depreciation	and		

	 amortization,	loss	on	impairment	of		

	 fixed	assets	and	capital	expenditures

	 	 Total	assets	 ¥128,45��	 ¥25,3�3	 ¥2,884	 ¥15��,��44	 ¥5��,����	 ¥212,��4�

	 	 �epreciation	and	amortization		 5,2��8	 2���	 5	 5,5��2	 38��	 5,�48

	 	 Loss	on	impairment	of	fixed	assets	 24��	 ���	 —	 3���	 —	 3���

	 	 Capital	expenditures	 �,81��	 2�4	 2	 1�,113	 ��81	 1�,8�4

	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars

	 2008

	 Power		 Materials	 	 	 Eliminations	 	
	 transmission	 handling	 	 	 and	general	 	
	 products		 systems	 Other	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

I�	�ales	and	operating	income

	 	 �ales	to	third	parties	 $1,333,119 $330,155 $ 5,584 $1,668,858 $      — $1,668,858
	 	 Intragroup	sales	and	transfers	 16,573 189 17,856 34,618 (34,618) —
	 	 Net	sales	 1,349,692 330,344 23,440 1,703,476 (34,618) 1,668,858
	 	 Operating	expenses	 1,155,765 290,910 21,037 1,467,712 3,469 1,471,181
	 	 Operating	income	 $  193,927 $ 39,434 $ 2,403 $  235,764 $ (38,087) $  197,677
II�		Total	assets,	depreciation	and		

amortization	and	capital	expenditures	

	 	 Total	assets	 $1,287,658 $239,824 $29,253 $1,556,735 $462,594 $2,019,329
	 	 �epreciation	and	amortization		 65,715 1,935 63 67,713 5,164 72,877
	 	 Capital	expenditures	 94,391 2,790 69 97,250 4,807 102,057
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geographic Segment Information
�egment	information	by	geographic	area	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	is	summarized	as	follows:

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2008

	 	 	 	 		 	 	 Eliminations		 	
	 	 	 	 Asia	and	 	 	 and	general		 	
	 Japan	 North	America	 Europe	 Oceania	 Other	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

External	sales		 ¥110,207 ¥35,491 ¥10,048 ¥11,130 ¥327 ¥167,203 ¥      — ¥167,203
Intragroup	sales

and	transfers	 20,338 512 23 837 — 21,710 (21,710) —
Net	sales	 130,545 36,003 10,071 11,967 327 188,913 (21,710) 167,203
Operating	expenses	 114,059 32,857 8,866 9,970 286 166,038 (18,640) 147,398
Operating	income	 ¥ 16,486 ¥ 3,146 ¥ 1,205 ¥ 1,997 ¥ 41 ¥ 22,875 ¥ (3,070) ¥ 19,805
Total	assets	 ¥124,201 ¥20,705 ¥ 7,342 ¥10,656 ¥  22 ¥162,926 ¥ 39,391 ¥202,317

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2����

	 	 	 	 		 	 Eliminations		
	 	 	 	 Asia	and	 	 and	general		 	
	 Japan	 North	America	 Europe	 Oceania	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

External	sales		 ¥111,4����	 ¥28,288	 ¥�,12��	 ¥��,8����	 ¥155,��4��	 ¥		 	 	 	 	 —	 ¥155,��4��

Intragroup	sales

and	transfers	 14,�33	 582	 1��	 ����4	 1��,2�5	 �1��,2�5�	 —

Net	sales	 12��,3��	 28,8���	 �,142	 ��,541	 1��1,�52	 �1��,2�5�	 155,��4��

Operating	expenses	 11�,��2�	 2��,5���	 8,2���	 ��,431	 152,�1��	 �13,1�����	 13�,��3�

Operating	income	 ¥	 15,�����	 ¥	 1,3�1	 ¥ 	 	84��	 ¥1,11�	 ¥	 1�,�3��	 ¥	 �3,�28�	 ¥	 1��,��8

Total	assets	 ¥12��,������	 ¥21,4��5	 ¥��,�53	 ¥��,4�3	 ¥1��2,���8	 ¥	4�,�42	 ¥212,��4�

	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars

	 2008

	 	 	 	 		 	 	 Eliminations		 	
	 	 	 	 Asia	and	 	 	 and	general		 	
	 Japan	 North	America	 Europe	 Oceania	 Other	 Total	 corporate	assets	 Consolidated

External	sales		 $1,099,982 $354,238 $100,286 $111,084 $3,268 $1,668,858 $       — $1,668,858
Intragroup	sales

and	transfers	 202,992 5,108 229 8,354 — 216,683 (216,683) —
Net	sales	 1,302,974 359,346 100,515 119,438 3,268 1,885,541 (216,683) 1,668,858
Operating	expenses	 1,138,428 327,947 88,491 99,505 2,855 1,657,226 (186,045) 1,471,181
Operating	income	 $  164,546 $  31,399 $  12,024 $  19,933 $  413 $  228,315 $ (30,638) $  197,677
Total	assets	 $1,239,651 $206,657 $  73,279 $106,355 $  224 $1,626,166 $ 393,163 $2,019,329

The	above	segments	principally	include	the	following	countries	or	regions:
	 North	America:	 ����A�	and	Canada
	 Europe:	 The	Netherlands	and	��K�
	 Asia	and	Oceania:	 Taiwan,	People’s	Republic	of	China,	�ingapore,	Thailand	and	Australia

	 As	 mentioned	 in	 Note	 3,	 effective	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	
2��8,	 the	Company	and	 its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	have	
changed	their	method	of	accounting	for	depreciation	of	property,	plant	
and	 equipment	 acquired	 on	 or	 after	 April	 1,	 2�����	 As	 a	 result,	
operating	 income	 in	 the	 Power	 transmission	 products	 business	
segment	decreased	by	¥214	million	�$2,13��	thousand�,	the	Materials	
handling	 systems	 business	 segment	 decreased	 by	 ¥4	 million	 �$41	
thousand�,	 the	Other	business	segment	decreased	by	¥�	million	 �$2	
thousand�	 and	 Eliminations	 and	 general	 corporate	 assets	 decreased	
by	¥5	million	�$42	thousand�	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2��8	from	
the	corresponding	amounts	which	would	have	been	recorded	under	the	
previous	method�

	 As	 mentioned	 in	 Note	 3,	 effective	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	
2��8,	 the	Company	and	 its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	have	
changed	their	method	of	accounting	for	depreciation	of	property,	plant	
and	 equipment	 acquired	 on	 or	 before	March	31,	 2�����	 As	 a	 result,	
operating	 income	 in	 the	 Power	 transmission	 products	 business	
segment	decreased	by	¥28��	million	�$2,85��	thousand�,	 the	Material	
handling	systems	business	segment	decreased	by	¥2�	million	�$2�4	
thousand�,	 the	Other	business	segment	decreased	by	¥1	million	 �$��	
thousand�	 and	 Eliminations	 and	 general	 corporate	 assets	 decreased	
by	¥8	million	�$��5	thousand�	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2��8	from	
the	corresponding	amounts	which	would	have	been	recorded	under	the	
previous	method�
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Overseas Sales
Overseas	sales,	which	include	export	sales	of	the	Company	and	its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	and	sales	�other	than	exports	to	Japan�	
of	the	overseas	consolidated	subsidiaries,	for	the	years	ended	March	31,	2��8	and	2����	are	summarized	as	follows:

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2008

	 North	America	 Europe	 Asia	and	Oceania	 Other	 Total

Overseas	sales	 ¥35,673 ¥10,745 ¥15,279 ¥924 ¥ 62,621
Consolidated	net	sales	 	 	 	 	 167,203
Overseas	sales	as	a	percentage	of	consolidated	net	sales	 21.3% 6.4% 9.1% 0.6% 37.4%

	 Millions	of	Yen

	 2����

	 North	America	 Europe	 Asia	and	Oceania	 Other	 Total

Overseas	sales	 ¥28,83�	 ¥�,8����	 ¥1��,11�	 ¥3,443	 ¥	58,258
Consolidated	net	sales	 	 	 	 	 155,��4��
Overseas	sales	as	a	percentage	of	consolidated	net	sales	 18�5%	 ���3%	 1��4%	 2�2%	 3���4%

	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars

	 2008

	 North	America	 Europe	 Asia	and	Oceania	 Other	 Total

Overseas	sales	 $356,059 $107,246 $152,500 $9,220 $  625,025
Consolidated	net	sales	 	 	 	 	 1,668,858

20. SUBSEqUENt EVENt

The	 following	 distribution	 of	 retained	 earnings	 of	 the	 Company,	 which	 has	 not	 been	 reflected	 in	 the	 accompanying	 consolidated	 financial	
statements	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2��8,	is	to	be	approved	at	the	annual	general	meeting	of	the	shareholders	held	on	June	2��,	2��8:

	 Millions	of	Yen	 Thousands	of	����	�ollars

Cash	dividends	�¥5��	�$���5�	per	share�	 ¥�3�	 $�,28��

	 As	 mentioned	 in	 Note	 3,	 effective	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	
2��8,	 the	Company	and	 its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	have	
changed	their	method	of	accounting	for	depreciation	of	property,	plant	
and	 equipment	 acquired	 on	 or	 after	 April	 1,	 2�����	 As	 a	 result,	
operating	 income	 in	 the	 Japan	 segment	 decreased	 by	 ¥218	 million	
�$2,18�	 thousand�,	 and	 Eliminations	 and	 general	 corporate	 assets	
decreased	by	¥5	million	�$42	thousand�	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	
2��8	 from	 the	 corresponding	 amounts	 which	 would	 have	 been	
recorded	under	the	previous	method�

		 As	 mentioned	 in	 Note	 3,	 effective	 the	 year	 ended	 March	 31,	
2��8,	 the	Company	and	 its	domestic	consolidated	subsidiaries	have	
changed	their	method	of	accounting	for	depreciation	of	property,	plant	
and	 equipment	 acquired	 on	 or	 before	March	31,	 2�����	 As	 a	 result,	
operating	 income	 in	 the	 Japan	 segment	 decreased	 by	 ¥31��	 million	
�$3,15��	 thousand�,	 and	 Eliminations	 and	 general	 corporate	 assets	
decreased	by	¥8	million	�$��5	thousand�	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	
2��8	 from	 the	 corresponding	 amounts	 which	 would	 have	 been	
recorded	under	the	previous	method�
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The	Board	of	�irectors

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�

We	 have	 audited	 the	 accompanying	 consolidated	 balance	 sheets	 of	 T��BAKIMOTO	 CHAIN	 CO�	 and	

consolidated	subsidiaries	as	of	March	31,	2��8	and	2����,	and	 the	 related	consolidated	statements	of	

income,	 changes	 in	 net	 assets,	 and	 cash	 flows	 for	 the	 years	 then	 ended,	 all	 expressed	 in	 yen�	 These	

financial	statements	are	the	responsibility	of	the	Company’s	management�	Our	responsibility	is	to	express	

an	opinion	on	these	financial	statements	based	on	our	audits�

We	 conducted	 our	 audits	 in	 accordance	 with	 auditing	 standards	 generally	 accepted	 in	 Japan�	 Those	

standards	require	that	we	plan	and	perform	the	audit	 to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	

financial	 statements	 are	 free	 of	 material	 misstatement�	 An	 audit	 includes	 examining,	 on	 a	 test	 basis,	

evidence	 supporting	 the	 amounts	 and	 disclosures	 in	 the	 financial	 statements�	 An	 audit	 also	 includes	

assessing	 the	 accounting	 principles	 used	 and	 significant	 estimates	 made	 by	 management,	 as	 well	 as	

evaluating	 the	 overall	 financial	 statement	 presentation�	We	believe	 that	 our	 audits	 provide	 a	 reasonable	

basis	for	our	opinion�

In	 our	 opinion,	 the	 financial	 statements	 referred	 to	 above	 present	 fairly,	 in	 all	 material	 respects,	 the	

consolidated	 financial	 position	 of	 T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�	 and	 consolidated	 subsidiaries	 at	March	31,	

2��8	and	2����,	and	the	consolidated	results	of	their	operations	and	their	cash	flows	for	the	years	then	

ended	in	conformity	with	accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	Japan�

The	����	dollar	amounts	 in	 the	accompanying	consolidated	 financial	statements	with	 respect	 to	 the	year	

ended	March	31,	2��8	are	presented	solely	for	convenience�	Our	audit	also	included	the	translation	of	yen	

amounts	 into	 ����	 dollar	 amounts	 and,	 in	 our	 opinion,	 such	 translation	 has	 been	 made	 on	 the	 basis	

described	in	Note	1�

Osaka,	Japan

June	1�,	2��8

Report of Independent Auditors
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Paid-in	Capital

Equity	Owned	by		
Tsubakimoto		

Chain	Co�
�ate	of	

Establishment Principal	Business

JAPAN 

T��BAKI	EMER�ON	CO�* ¥4�����	million ������% April	2��2 	Manufacture	and	sales	of	reducers,	variable	
speed	drives,	and	their	related	products

T��BAKIMOTO	C��TOM	CHAIN	CO�* ¥125��	million �����% October	1�51 	Manufacture	of	compact	conveyor	chains		
and	special	chains

T��BAKIMOTO	�PROCKET	CO�* ¥12����	million ����% October	1���8 Manufacture	and	sales	of	sprockets		
and	couplings

T��BAKIMOTO	IRON	CA�TING	CO�,	LT��* ¥5���	million 1����% October	1���8 	Manufacture,	processing,	and	sales		
of	casting	products

T��BAKI	YAMAKY�	CHAIN	CO�* ¥12����	million 51��% �eptember	1�3� Manufacture	and	sales	of	various	types	of	
plastic	chain	and	automated	equipment

�HINKO	MACHINERY	CO� ¥5���	million 5���% March	1���1 Manufacture	of	conveyor	chains

T��BAKIMOTO	MAYFRAN	INC�* ¥����	million 5���% November	1���3 	�esign,	manufacture,	and	sales	of	chip/
scrap	conveyors

T��BAKIMOTO	B�LK	�Y�TEM�	CORP�* ¥15���	million 1����% April	1�81 Manufacture	and	sales	of	bulk	materials	
handling	systems

T��BAKIMOTO	MACHINERY	CO�* ¥13���	million ��8�2% April	1���1 �omestic	sales	of	Tsubakimoto		
Chain	products

HOKKAI�O	T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�,	LT��* ¥3���	million 1����% October	1���1 �omestic	sales	of	Tsubakimoto		
Chain	products

T��BAKIMOTO	NI�HINIHON	CO�,	LT��* ¥����	million 5���% October	1��3 �omestic	sales	of	Tsubakimoto		
Chain	products

T��BAKI	��PPORT	CENTER	CO�* ¥8���	million 1����% October	1���� 	Building	maintenance	service,		
insurance	agency,	and	sales	of		
healthcare	equipment

NORtH AMERICA 

����	T��BAKI,	INC�*
3�1	E�	Marquardt	�rive,		
Wheeling,	IL	������-��4���,	����A�	
Telephone:	�84���	45�-�5��	 Facsimile:	�84���	45�-�515

��$33,5��,��� 1����% February	1���1 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power		
transmission	products

BALLANTINE,	INC�*
84�	McKinley	�treet,	
Anoka,	MN	553�3-114��,	����A�	
Telephone:	�����3�	42��-3�5�	 Facsimile:	�����3�	42��-22����

��$5�,��� ����	
Tsubaki	
1����%

March	1�88 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power		
transmission	products

T��BAKI	OF	CANA�A	LIMITE�*
1��3�	�rew	Road,	Mississauga,	
Ontario,	L5�	1J��,	Canada	
Telephone:	���5�	������-�4��		Facsimile:	���5�	������-���4

C$��,2�5,�55 1����% July	1���3 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power		
transmission	products

T��BAKI	BRA�IL	REPRE�ENTAçãO	COMERCIAL	LT�A�
R�	Pamplona,	1�18,	CJ�	��3/��4,	Jd�	Paulista,		
CEP	�14�5-��1,	�ão	Paulo,	��P�	Brazil
Telephone:	�11�	3253-5��5��		Facsimile:	�11�	3253-3384

��$2��,��� 1����% November	2���� �ales	of	power	transmission	products	in	
�outh	America

EUROPE 

T��BAKIMOTO	E�ROPE	B�V�*
Aventurijn	12��,	331��	LB	�ordrecht,	
The	Netherlands	
Telephone:	����8�	��2�4���		Facsimile:	����8�	��2�4��1

2,��22,��81 1����% April	1���2 Import	and	sales	of	power	transmission	
products	

T��BAKIMOTO	��K�	LT��*	
Osier	�rive,	�herwood	Park,		
Annesley,	Nottingham,	NG15	O�X,		
�nited	Kingdom	
Telephone:	�1��23�	��88����		Facsimile:	�1��23�	��88��8�

£55�,��� Tsubakimoto	
Europe	

1����%

March	1�85 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products

T�E�E���	LIMITE�
55	Kedleston	Court,	Norbury	Close,		
Allestree,	�erby,	�E22	2QF,	�nited	Kingdom		
Telephone:	�1332�	5512����		Facsimile:	�1332�	5512����

£3�,��� 1����% March	1��� Import	and	sales	of	materials	handling	
	systems	

*	Consolidated	subsidiary

tsubaki group Companies
As	of	March	31,	2��8

5��



Paid-in	Capital

Equity	Owned	by		
Tsubakimoto		

Chain	Co�
�ate	of	

Establishment Principal	Business

 ASIA AND OCEANIA 

TAIWAN	T��BAKIMOTO	CO�*
No�	��	Feng	�un	Keng,	
Kuei	�han-Hsiang,	Taoyuan-Hsien,	Taiwan	
Telephone:	�33�	2�382��~�		Facsimile:	�33�	2�3���5

NT$���,���,��� 1����% January	1���� Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products

T��BAKIMOTO	�INGAPORE	PTE�	LT��*
25	Gul	Lane,	Jurong,	�ingapore	��2�41�	
Telephone:	��8��1	�422~4		Facsimile:	��8��1	���35

¥2��1�1	million 1����% January	1�81 Import	and	sales	of	power	transmission	
products

T��BAKIMOTO	A�TOMOTIVE	�THAILAN��	CO�,	LT��*
����-4����	Moo	��,	Amata	Nakorn	Industrial	Estate,	
Tambol	�on	Hua	Roh,	Amphur	Muang,	
Chonburi	2����,	Thailand	
Telephone:	�38�	454�21~4		Facsimile:	�38�	454�25

THB1��,���,��� 1����% March	2��2 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products

T��BAKIMOTO	�THAILAN��	CO�,	LT��*
���/�	The	Offices	at	Centralworld,	
No�	1��1,	Rama	1	Road,	Pathumwan,	Bangkok	1�33�,	Thailand	
Telephone:	�2�	2��4-5354~��		Facsimile:	�2�	251-3�12

THB4,���,��� Tsubakimoto	
�ingapore	

�5�1%

March	2��2 Import	and	sales	of	power	transmission	
products

T��BAKI	A��TRALIA	PTY�	LIMITE�*
�nit	E,	�5-1�1	�ilverwater	Road,	
�ilverwater,	N���W�	2128,	Australia		
Telephone:	�2�	���48-52���		Facsimile:	�2�	���48-3115

A�$3��,��� 1����% May	1�8�� Import	and	sales	of	power	transmission	
products

T��BAKIMOTO	A�TOMOTIVE	��HANGHAI�	CO�,	LT��*
No�	3	Building,	No�	1588	Gaotai	Rd�,	Jiading	Industrial	Area,	
�hanghai	2�1821,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	���1��-�441	Facsimile:	�21�	���1��-�44��

RMB2�,���2,�3� 1����% April	2��4 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products	

T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	TRA�ING	��HANGHAI�	CO�,	LT��
Room	1��12,	Lippo	Plaza,	No�	222	Huai	Hai	Zhong	Rd�,	
�hanghai	2���21,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	53���-����51	Facsimile:	�21�	53���-����28

��$4��,��� 1����% June	2��4 Import	and	sales	of	power	transmission	
products

T��BAKI	KABEL�CHLEPP	�HANGHAI	CO�,	LT��
Room	���1,	�ongfang	Road,	Pudong,		
�hanghai	2��122,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	��8����-�511	Facsimile:	�21�	��8����-�45��

��$2��,��� �����% November	2��� Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products

T��BAKI	EMER�ON	GEAR	�TIANJIN�	CO�,	LT��*
135	�ong	Ting	Road,	Teda,	
Tianjin	3��45��,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�22�	2532-��41�		Facsimile:	�22�	2532-��421

RMB8��,4���,�23 Tsubaki	
Emerson	

52�2%

June	1��� Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	reduc-
ers,	variable	speed	drives,	and	their	related	
products

T��BAKI	EMER�ON	MACHINERY	��HANGHAI�	CO�,	LT��
No�	4	Building,	No�	1588	Gaotai	Rd�,	Jiading	Industrial	Area,	
�hanghai	2�1821,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	���1��-�3�5	Facsimile:	�21�	���1��-�3�8

��$1,2��,��� Tsubaki	
Emerson	
1����%

July	2��4 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	power	
transmission	products

TIANJIN	�ONGCH�N-TAIKI	METAL	FINI�HING	&		
CONVEYOR	�Y�TEM	MAN�FACT�RING	CO�,	LT��
Yang	Cheng	Zhuang	Bridge	4,	�outhwest	�ide,		
Jinghai,	Tianjin	3�1��1��,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�22�	��8��4-5848		Facsimile:	�22�	��8��4-584�

	��$5��,��� 2���% January	2��4 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	mate-
rials	handling	systems

�HANGHAI	�ONGBO-TAIKI	CONVEYOR	�Y�TEM	
MAN�FACT�RING	CO�,	LT��
Room	1128,	Pine	City	Hotel,	No�	8,	�ong	An	Road,	
�hanghai	2���32,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	��443-���8�		Facsimile:	�21�	��443-�4��8

��$���,��� 2���% March	2��5 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	mate-
rials	handling	systems

TIANJIN	T��BAKIMOTO	CONVEYOR	�Y�TEM�	CO�,	LT��
Beichen	�istrict,	Tianjin	3��4��,	People’s	Republic	of	China		
Telephone:	�22�	2��81-8124		Facsimile:	�22�	2��3�-8��21

	RMB8,314,833 Tsubakimoto	
Bulk	�ystems	

4����%

August	1��5 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	bulk	
materials	handling	systems

KOREA	CONVEYOR	IN��	CO�,	LT��
��8B	��L,	Namdong	Industrial	Estate,	
��2��-3,	Gojan-dong,	Namdong-gu,	Incheon,	Republic	of	Korea	
Telephone:	�32�	81��-�1���		Facsimile:	�32�	81�-�1��8

KRW1,2��,���,��� 4���% January	1���� Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	mate-
rials	handling	systems

KOREA	MAYFRAN	CO�,	LT��
��8B	��L,	Namdong	Industrial	Estate,	
��2��-3,	Gojan-dong,	Namdong-gu,	Incheon,	Republic	of	Korea	
Telephone:	�32�	822-588��/��		Facsimile:	�32�	822-58���

KRW����,���,��� Tsubakimoto	
Mayfran	

3���5%	
Korea	Conveyor	

25��%

October	1��� Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	chip/
scrap	conveyors

T��BAKIMOTO	MAYFRAN	CONVEYOR		
	 ��HANGHAI�	CO�,	LT��
No�	1��88-B	Hong	�e	Road,	Jiading	Industrial	Area,	
�hanghai	2�1821,	People’s	Republic	of	China	
Telephone:	�21�	���1��-��1��		Facsimile:	�21�	���1��-��18

��$1,2��,��� Tsubakimoto		
Mayfran		
1����%

June	2��5 Import,	sales,	and	local	production	of	chip/
scrap	conveyors	

5��



Corporate Data

Company	Name		 T��BAKIMOTO	CHAIN	CO�

�ate	of	Incorporation		 January	31,	1�41

Paid-in	Capital	 ¥1��,�����	million

Headquarters		 3-3-3,	Nakanoshima,	Kita-ku,	Osaka		

	 53�-���5,	Japan

Telephone		 +81-��-��441-��11

Fiscal	Year-End		 March	31

Number	of	Consolidated	�ubsidiaries		 24

Number	of	Equity-Method	Affiliates		 	 2

Number	of	�nconsolidated	�ubsidiaries	 	 ��

Number	of	Affiliates		 	 �

Number	of	Employees	�consolidated�		 	5,3��1	
�including	contracted	and	
temporary	staff�	

		Stock Information

�hareholder	Register		 The	Chuo	Mitsui	Trust	and	Banking
	 Company,	Limited

�tock	Listings		 Tokyo,	Osaka,	and	Nagoya

Common	�tock
	 Authorized:		 2��,���,���	shares
	 Issued:		 1�1,4���,����	shares

Number	of	�hareholders	 13,5��5

Major	�hareholders
	 	 Number	of		 Percentage	
	 	 �hares	Held	 	of	Total	�hares		
	 Name	 �thousands�	 Issued

Taiyo	Life	Insurance	Company	 18,3�8	 ���

The	Master	Trust	Bank	of	Japan,	Ltd�	 14,����4	 ����

Taiyo	Fund	LP		 12,518	 �����

Nippon	Life	Insurance	Company	 12,15�	 ���5

Japan	Trustee	�ervices	Bank,	Ltd�	 �,���2	 5�2

Toyota	Motor	Corporation	 ��,��22	 4�1

�umitomo	Mitsui	Banking	Corporation		 ��,�34	 3�8

Kyoeikai	Employee	�tock	Ownership	Association		 4,��5�	 2�5

The	Chuo	Mitsui	Trust	and		

	 Banking	Company,	Limited		 4,245	 2�3

Morgan	�tanley	&	Co�	Incorporated	 3,���2	 1��

1�	Numbers	less	than	1,���	have	been	rounded�

2�		The	Company	owns	treasury	stock	of	5,32�,�14	shares;	however,	these	shares	
are	not	included	in	the	above	list	of	major	shareholders�

3�		Percentage	of	total	shares	issued	has	been	calculated	excluding	the	treasury	stock	
of	5,32�,�14	shares�

44x44

Foreign Institutions 
and Individuals
129: 0.95%

Other Japanese Companies 
282: 2.08%

Securities Firms 
41: 0.30%

Individuals and Others
13,061: 96.21%

Other Japanese
Institutions 1: 0.01%

Financial Institutions
61: 0.45%

Total
13,575

Composition of Issued Shares by type of Shareholder

Composition of Shareholders

Note:	Treasury	stock	of	5,32�,�14	shares	is	included	in	“Individuals	and	Others�”

44x44

Other Japanese
Institutions
104,000: 0.06%

Securities Firms
1,198,453: 0.63%

Financial Institutions
95,174,510: 49.72%

Other Japanese
Companies

20,334,358: 10.62%

Individuals and Others
38,633,296: 20.18%

Foreign Institutions 
and Individuals

35,962,352: 18.79%

Total
191,406,969

Total
13,575

Corporate Data and Stock Information
As	of	March	31,	2��8
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Our Mission—Excellence in Manufacturing for Customers around the world
We	will	provide	the	best	value	to	customers	around	the	world	by	capitalizing	on	our		

technical	strengths	in	power	transmission	products	and	materials	handling	systems�

Our Vision
We	aim	to	be	a	leading	company	in	the	global	markets	for	our	products�

Our Values
		We	will	contribute	to	overall	social	and	economic	development	by	manufacturing		

products	that	satisfy	customers�

		We	will	gain	the	trust	and	meet	the	expectations	of	society	through	compliance		

with	laws	and	corporate	ethics,	and	through	active	information	disclosure�

		We	will	contribute	to	the	development	of	local	societies	as	a	good	corporate	citizen		

by	taking	into	full	account	the	customs	of	each	region	and	country�

		We	will	demonstrate	creativity	and	an	ability	to	accept	new	challenges,	and		

take	action	promptly�

		We	will	build	open	business	relationships	through	fairness	and	honesty	with		

our	business	partners,	aiming	for	mutual	prosperity	and	growth�

		We	will	work	tirelessly	to	nurture	and	develop	businesses	in	target	markets	in		

which	we	have	the	potential	to	be	No�	1�

		We	will	try	to	protect	the	global	environment	in	all	of	our	business	activities		

in	order	to	contribute	to	an	abundant	future	for	society�

		We	will	carry	out	innovative	operations	globally,	bringing	together	the	strengths		

of	our	affiliates,	both	domestic	and	overseas�

Underpinning all management activities, this Mission Statement clearly and concisely 

expresses the tsubaki group’s aim of becoming a globally leading company through the 

continued pursuit of manufacturing excellence and ambitious goals guided by a basic 

commitment to providing customers with best value.

tsubaki Mission 
Statement

5�



Printed in Japan

tsubakimoto.com
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STEPPING UP 
MOVING  AHEAD

2008 年 09 月 11 日 17 時 15 分　　天地 280- 左右 434（背幅 4）
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